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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director:
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Chairman’s
Statement

FTEHREE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (each, a “Director”) of IDT International
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group” or “we" or
“us”), | am pleased to present the Group's annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022 (“FY2022" and for the year ended 3| December 2021, “FY2021").

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s total revenue for FY2022 amounted to approximately HK$2.2 million (FY2021:
approximately HKS$17.1 million), representing a decrease of approximately 87.1% as
compared with the total revenue of FY2021, which was due to suspension of the Group’s

operation as a result of the close of the Shenzhen factory.
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Gross loss of FY2022 totalled approximately HK$3.0 million (FY2021: gross profit of
approximately HK$1.9 million). Gross loss was reported in FY2022 as approximately
HK$3.7 million of inventory was write-off in FY2022.

Total operating expenses of the Group, including research expenses, distribution and
selling expenses and general administrative expenses, amounted to approximately HK$23.5
million for FY2022 (FY2021: approximately HK$64.8 million). The total operating expenses
decreased by approximately 63.7% since the research expenses and distribution and
selling expenses have dropped for approximately 92.8% and 88.9%, respectively. Further,
general administrative expenses reduced by approximately 52.0% as the Company is in the

progress of its downsizing process.

Other income during FY2022 amounted to approximately HK$18.8 million (FY2021:
approximately HK$6.6 million), which was mainly derived from early termination of the

leases.

Charge of loss allowance on financial assets for FY2022 was recorded as approximately
HK$2.0 million (FY2021: approximately HK$8.8 million) due to decrease in credit loss of
trade receivables. Losses from impairment for FY2022 was recorded as approximately
HK$6.2 million (FY2021: approximately HK$11.8 million) due to impairment of advances

to suppliers, other taxes recoverable and property, plant and equipment.

Loss for FY2022 was approximately HK$21.8 million (FY2021: approximately HK$84.2

million).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Chairman’s Statement

FREHRES

OUTLOOK

In December 2023, the Group has actively reestablished contacts and negotiations with
potential customers and suppliers to recommence the Group’s business. The Group's
operations gradually resumed in the first quarter of 2024 and have resumed sales of

electronic products under the trademark of “Oregon Scientific”.

In order to enhance market awareness of the “Oregon Scientific” brand, promote and to
advertise and showcase its products, the Group established its own online retail platform
(http:/foregonscientific.store) and set up new online stores on Noon (an online platform
headquartered in Dubai) and Mercado Libre (the largest online platform in Latin America)
respectively. The aforementioned online stores have started operating progressively in the
first half of 2024. Additionally, the Group is continuously expanding its product portfolio to

meet new customer demands and enhance the Group's market competitiveness.

With the society and economy returning to normalcy and the diminishing effects of
the trade war, the market situation should significantly improve thereafter. Through the
Group's efforts in the first half of 2024, the Group’s business has gradually recovered and
continues to receive new orders from customers. The Company had secured confirmed
orders exceeding HK$70 million, which are expected to be fulfilled and delivered in the

third quarter of 2024. The Group's business should remain sustainable in the long run.

For more detalils, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3 January
2024, 10 May 2024 and 2 July 2024.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to all shareholders
and business associates for the continuous support. Our deep appreciation also goes to
the management team and staff members for their hard work and dedication in the past

financial period.

Cheung Yuk Ki

Director

Hong Kong, 9 August 2024
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group
FrEEEERSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zhu Yongning (Resigned on | February 2024)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, aged 56. Mr. Zhu graduated from Fudan
University of Shanghai with a master degree in international finance, and is a senior
economist. He has over 33 years of working experience in the financial sector. Mr. Zhu
is the director of Jiangsu Nandasoft Technology Company Limited, whose stock code is
08045. Since 1990, Mr. Zhu served successively of the international business department
of China Construction Bank in Jiangsu province, president of a sub-branch of China

Investment Bank under its Jiangsu branch, sub-branch of China Everbright Bank.

Cheung Yuk Ki (Appointed on | February 2024)

Executive Director and Authorized Representative, aged 25. Ms. Cheung is director of
PSME Co, Ltd (a company in Shenzhen, the PRC) since 2023, director, human resources
manager and head of art and advertising of Player Base (CKP Online gaming service
program) Markham, Canada. Ms. Cheung received Bachelor of Fine Art from School of the
Art Institute of Chicago, USA in 2021.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Cui Xiao

Non-Executive Director, aged 47, joined Hongtu SanPower Advanced Technology Limited
("Hongtu Sanbao™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co,
Ltd. ("Jiangsu Hongtu”) in 2001 and served as Hongtu Sanbao'’s director of information
department, network maintenance department, and is currently working at the human
resources corporate governance and administration centre of Hongtu Sanbao. Since 28
February 2020, Mr. Cui is a supervisor of Jiangsu Hongtu. He obtained a bachelor degree
in economics and administration management from Nanjing Politics College of People’s
Liberation Army of China in 2012.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

Ng Kwok Ying Isabella (Appointed on | February 2024)

Non-Executive Director, and a member of the remuneration committee, aged 37. Ms. Ng
is an executive director of China Parenting Network Holdings Limited (stock code: 1736)
since 25 August 2023. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ng served as the art department
head at Kids Gallery Ltd. from 2020 to 2021, the art program lecturer and trainer at the
Institute of Advance Leaming from 2015 to 2019, the art department head at Kido Town
Ltd. from 2014 to 2019, and the art centre department head at LZYE Ltd. from 2011 to
2013. Ms. Ng obtained a bachelor's degree in fine art from the School of the Art Institute
of Chicago in 2008 and a master’s degree in fine art from RMIT University in 2014.

Chen Tiger Charles (Appointed on | February 2024)

Non-Executive Director, and a member of the remuneration committee, aged 26. Mr.
Chen received Bachelor of Science in Chemistry from St. Edward's University, USA in
2023.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zhou Meilin (Resigned on | February 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee, a member
of nomination and corporate governance committee and remuneration committee of
the Board, aged 58. Mr. Zhou is a Chinese practicing lawyer, Chinese certified public
accountant (Non-practicing), tax agent, and part-time teacher of Nanjing University of

finance and economics.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group
FrEEEERSREERE

From January 2016, Mr. Zhou joined Jiangsu Deging law firm as lawyer. Before that, Mr.
Zhou worked for Nanjing Xuanwu Tax Bureau from July 1985 to December 2015, took
the different positions including tax administration, tax collection and management, financial
management, tax audit (from 1995 to 1996, Mr. Zhou worked for Nanjing Shicheng
Accounting (Tax) Firm). During the period in the tax bureau, Mr. Zhou was employed as a
part-time teacher in tax system, participated in the compilation of provincial and municipal
tax system risk platforms and inspection guidelines for many times, and participated in
dozens of enterprise bankruptcy, reform, restructuring and merger and acquisition work.
By virtue of his profound business skills, Mr. Zhou has won the title of tax system business
expert for many times. Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director of Jiangsu
Nandasoft Technology Company Limited whose share are listed in Hong Kong with stock
code 08045 since 3 December 2020. Mr. Zhou is an independent non-executive director
of Jiangsu ZhongQi Technology Company Limited (stock code: SZ300575) since 22 April
2021.

Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in accounting, internal control, financial statement
analysis, tax planning and related laws; he is good at enterprise initial public offerings,
reorganisation, merger and acquisition, bankruptcy, tax dispute settlement, tax risk
prevention and tax planning. Mr. Zhou holds a bachelor’s degree from Nanjing Normal

University.
Zhou Rui (Resigned on | February 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the nomination and corporate
governance committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the audit
committee of the Board, aged 38. Mr. Zhou Rui is the vice president of China Galaxy
Securities from 2015 up to present, mainly responsible for business development and
providing investment, fund-raising consultant service to public and private company. During
August 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Zhou Rui worked in Beijing Hony Future Investment
Advisor Ltd as a senior manager, responsible for finding right investment project, executing
due diligence and investment and after investment management. During August 2009
to August 2012, Mr. Zhou Rui served as a supervisor of China International Capital
Corporation Limited, responsible for securities trading system's design and testing. Mr.

Zhou Rui holds a master degree in Mathematics from Nanjing University.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

Xu Jinwen

Independent Non-Executive Director and the chairman of the remuneration committee
and the nomination and corporate governance committee and the audit committee of the
Board, aged 59. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the board, chief executive officer and executive
Director of Changjiang Securities International Financial Group Limited. Mr. Xu served
as the deputy general manager of China Construction Bank Hubei Provincial Trust and
Investment Corporation (H BIf2 & IR1T LB EFERE A F]) from December 1990
to October 1995. He worked in Guotai Securities Limited Hubei Branch (Bl R & % 5
BRAENMIL S A E]) as the deputy general manager, and Guotai Junan Securities Limited
Jiangxi Branch (BIZRE LA HRIDARAFNIFED R F]) as the general manager from
October 1995 to November 2002. Mr. Xu worked as president in Golden Sun Securities
Limited (B 8% & % B R 2 7)) from November 2002 to April 2006, Mr. Xu served as
the chairman in Changjiang BNP Paribas Peregrine Securities Co., Ltd. from April 2006
to May 2007. Mr. Xu was the executive vice president and the secretary of the board
of Changjiang Securities Company Limited from May 2007 to March 2016. Mr. Xu was
independent non-executive Director of Shenzhen Zhongheng Huafa Co,, Ltd, from June
2016 to September 2019, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(SZSE: 000020 and 200020). Mr. Xu has over 30 years of experience working in the
financial industry, and he particularly worked in the area of securities for more than 20
years. He is very familiar with China and overseas financial markets and products, with
extensive experience in the management of financial institution and investment. Mr.
Xu holds a doctorate degree in Management Science and Engineering from Huazhong

University of Science and Technology.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management
Discussion and
Analysis
EEENWmE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Due to the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group decided to discontinue
production at our Shenzhen factory with effect from 5 March 2022 and the tenancy of
factory was terminated on 31 May 2022. The Group's operations had been substantially
suspended following the close of the Shenzhen factory. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group recorded sales revenue of approximately HK$2.2 million (FY2021:
approximately HK$17.1 million) and gross loss of approximately HK$3.0 million (FY2021:
gross profit of approximately HK$1.9 million). Loss for FY2022 decreased by approximately
74.1% to approximately HK$21.8 million (FY2021: approximately HK$84.2 million), which

was due to the Group's effort in cost control.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance as at 31 December 2022 was nil (FY2021: approximately HK$5.2
million) as there was a fully write-off of inventories of approximately HK$3.7 million due
to the obsolescence and diminishing marketability as a result of changes in the market
condition and technology during the year ended 3| December 2022. Trade receivables
balances as at 31 December 2022 was nil (FY2021: approximately HK$0.7 million).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, there was 2,599,993,088 issued and fully paid shares with
HK$0.1 each. The net liabilities value per share as at 31 December 2022 was approximately

HK12.6 cents loss per share (FY2021: approximately HKI .8 cents loss per share).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to enhance its
financial strength for the Group's long-term development. There were no changes in the

Group's approach to capital management during the year ended 31 December 2022.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total assets amounted to approximately
HK$3.3 million (FY2021: approximately HK$81.3 million). Total liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$330.9 million (FY2021: approximately HK$386.8 million), the Group
expresses its gearing ratio as a percentage of borrowings over total assets which was
approximately 7,342.4% (202 1: approximately 321.9%). The drastic decrease in the total

assets resulted in the increase in the gearing ratio.

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances and cash of the Group, including restricted bank
balances, amounted to approximately HK$3.3 million (2021: approximately HK$52.9
million). During the Year, the cash were mainly used in operating activities and financing

activities.

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$327.6 million (FY2021:
approximately HK$252.3 million), approximately HK$75.3 million higher than that of
FY2021, which is due to combined effect of decrease in both current assets and current
liabilities in FY2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the total outstanding amount of borrowings was approximately
HK$57.6 million (FY2021: approximately HK$58.0 million), all of which (FY2021:
approximately HK$9.3 million) are repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2022,
the outstanding amount of the loan from a shareholder was approximately HK$184.7
million (FY2021: approximately HK$203.7 million). After the transfer of the loan from
Huaneng to Party A, Party A has undertaken that the repayment of the loan to the
Group of approximately HK$184,689,000 at 31 December 2022 will be restructured and
any remaining outstanding amount as a result of the restructuring will not be requested
within twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,
unless the Group has obtained funding from other sources and is in a position to meet all

repayment obligations at that time.

As at 31 December 2022, subcontracting fees of approximately HK$5.7 million and salary
and compensations of approximately HK$2.9 million are due and unpaid. The Board is still

in negotiation with related creditors for a settlement plan.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At 31 December 2022, there were no charges on the Group’s assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

There was no capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for FY2022.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies
in the course of FY2022.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company do not recommend any dividend for FY2022 (FY2021: Nil).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS

@)

In December 2020, there was a litigation initiated by a supplier of the Group in
Hong Kong claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of purchase orders against
a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong in view of unilateral cancellation of purchase
orders by the subsidiary of the Group for a sum of approximately US$334,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.6 million). The management of the Group,
having obtained the legal advice from an independent legal counsel, estimated that
the Group will likely be liable to pay for the total and, therefore, the Group had
recognised the provision for losses on litigations of approximately HK$2.3 million in

profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsequently, on 12 April 2022, the Group has filed a Consent Summons for
settlement to the District Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
According to the Consent Summons, the settlement sum was reduced to
approximately US$130,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.0 million) and was
agreed to be settled by instalments on without admission of liability basis. On | |
May 2022, the Consent Summons was approved. As a result, a reversal of provision
for losses on litigations of approximately HK$ 1.3 million had been recognised in
“Provision for losses on litigations, net” in “Other losses, net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 3|
December 2021. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has fully

settled the unpaid balance of purchase orders.

In 2020, the Group received a notice from a District Court in the PRC (the "PRC
District Court”) stating that a supplier of the Group in the PRC has initiated legal
action against certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC by claiming the allegedly
due and unpaid balance of subcontracting fees from the Group. In respect of the
aforesaid due and unpaid balance of subcontracting fees approximately HK$5.5

million had been recognised in “Trade payables™ at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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According to final judgements dated 8 August 2022 issued by the PRC District
Court, the Group was liable to make payment of approximately RMB4.9 million
and approximately RMBO.| million (equivalent to approximately HK$5.5 million and
approximately HK$0.! million) as settlement of subcontracting fees and material

costs, respectively.

Subsequent to the 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approving these
consolidated financial statements, the restricted bank balance of approximately
HK$2.9 million as at 31 December 2022 was utilised as settlement of above trade
payables. The remaining subcontracting fees were still outstanding up to the date of

approving the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received several notices
from the PRC District Court stating that a group of ten individual former employees
and three individual former employees of the Group in the PRC have initiated legal
action against subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC by claiming compensation of the
dismissal of labour contract in view of breach of terms in employment agreement
with the Group. Pursuant to the judgements made by the court of the PRC, the
Group was ordered to make payment amounting to approximately HK$2.8 million
which had been recognised in "“Provision for losses on litigations, net” in “Other
losses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group has filed for appeals for
such judgements to the PRC District Court.

According to the final judgement dated 7 December 2021, the PRC District
Court dismissed the appeals and affirmed the original judgement. The Group
has been trying to reach a settlement agreement with them subsequent to the
final judgement issued by the PRC District Court but yet to reach a settlement
agreement subsequent to the 3| December 2022 and up to the date of approving

the consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Management Discussion and Analysis

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group was not involved in any other material
litigation or arbitration. As far as the management of the Group was aware, the
Group had no other material litigation or claim which was pending or threatened
against the Group. At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group was the defendant
of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to certain litigations arising
from the ordinary course of business of the Group. The likely outcome of these
contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained with
reasonable certainty at present, but the management of the Group believes that any
possible legal liability which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will not have

any material impact on the financial position or results of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 100 employees (FY2021: 353). The
total staff cost was approximately HK$14.5 million (FY2021: approximately HK$61.9
million) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group fully recognises the importance of its employees who contribute significantly
to its success and continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by

providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates
which reward individual's performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the Group are comparable with
other organisations of similar size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee's remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay,
fringe benefits including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as incentives like

discretionary cash bonus.
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The Group's remuneration philosophy for senior executives is based upon creating a

strong link between performance and reward in accordance with the following principles:

Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against comparable
groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size and business nature and

benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined performance
targets including financial targets, performance index and pre-agreed management

objectives.

The emolument of the Directors is recommended by the remuneration committee with
reference to companies of comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity
of work at both Board and Board committee (the “Board Committee”) levels (including
frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate Directors
reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The Directors’ emolument is approved by the
Board pursuant to the mandate granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings.
Remuneration are paid to a Director for appointment as a member of a particular
committee. Non-Executive Directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension
except reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with their directorship of the
Company. No individual Director is allowed to participate in the procedures for deciding
his/her individual remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial statements

contained in this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. Throughout the year ended 3| December 2022 under review, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange (ie. the
new Appendix CI with effect from 31 December 2023), save for the deviation from the
Code Provision C2.1, C.1.6 and C.1.8.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

During FY2022, the Board comprised five Directors of whom one is Executive Director

and one is Non-Executive Director and three are Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Brief biographical details of the Directors appear in the Directors and Senior Management
of the Group section of this annual report. An updated list of Directors of the Company
and their respective roles and functions are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and

the Company's website.

Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of Directors

The nomination and corporate governance committee of the Board (“NCGC") reviews
the profiles of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, re-election and retirement of Directors.

The Company recognises the importance of having the appropriate board composition. In
deciding the board composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among the Directors
are considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking into account
the scope and nature of its operations. The Directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance, business and management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and
decision-making and has an appropriate balance of independent Directors to exercise

independent judgment.
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In accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting (the “AGM”),
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board as an additional Board member or fill in a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the AGM immediately following their appointments. The new Directors shall not be taken
into account in determining the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at that

AGM. Election and re-election of Directors will be done by separate resolution.

The names and biographical details of the Directors who will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM will be set out in the circular accompanying the notice
of AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board diversity will be considered by the
Company from a number of aspects, including but not limited to cultural and educational
background, experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, age and gender. The Board
composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the NCGC on an annual basis and it
will make recommendations to the Board after the review. The Company’s business needs
will also be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In
reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board as well as selecting candidate(s),
the NCGC will consider all diversity elements according to the policy and also devised
guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-executive directors
and board membership criteria. The policy and those guidelines shall be reviewed and

revised periodically to meet business needs of the Group.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will receive induction and reference materials
to enable him/her to familiarise himself/herself with the Group's history, mission, business
operations and board and company policies. Each Director is briefed and updated from
time to time to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under Statutory
and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory requirements and

the governance policies of the Company and latest Listing Rules and legislation.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities. During
FY2022, relevant reading materials including regulatory update, seminar handouts and latest
regulatory case selection etc. have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.

A summary of training activities taken by the Directors during FY2022 is set out as follows:
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Training activities including in-house
activities/briefings, seminars/talks held
by professional organisations and/or
reading materials on relevant topics
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Executive Director: HITEE .

Zhu Yongning RKE
Non-Executive Director: FHITES !

Cui Xiao TR
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Xu Jinwen REB3C
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the Code Provision C2.1, the roles of the chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ") should be separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a

balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.

During FY2022, Mr. Zhu Yongning, the CEO of the Company, took up the responsibilities
of both the chairman and CEO of the Company. The Board has been trying to recruit
a suitable candidate such that the two roles can be separated since then. However,
the Board, after Mr. Zhu has assumed the two roles, consider that vesting two roles in
the same person could provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the
development and execution of the Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the
Group. Mr. Zhu resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from |
February 2024.

Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company'’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of the Board are

to:

. establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

. determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives of the
Group;

. monitor management performance;

. approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals, key funding and

investment proposals;

. oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance;

. approve the nominations of Directors and appointment of key personnel, and

. assume responsibility for corporate governance.
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The Board delegates daily operations of the Group to Executive Directors and senior
executives, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the management through Executive Directors who have attended at

Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the management.

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters reserved for decision and consideration of the Board
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate governance practices,
legal and regulatory compliance, internal control and risk management, corporate strategy,
operating and capital budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members,
major transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of Directors and
senior management, financial authorisation and approval limits for operating and capital
expenditure, the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of
investments.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company have shared their valuable experience with the Board
in the interests of promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have made significant contribution
of their skills and expertise to the Board Committees. All Independent Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for a fixed term of three years and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the AGM of the Company in accordance with

the Company's Bye-Laws.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors of the Company. The functions

of Independent Non-Executive Directors include, but not limited to:

. participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment to bear on
issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standard of conducts;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
. serving on Board Committees, if invited; and
. scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.
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During FY2022, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules regarding the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors
including at least one Independent Non-Executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or relating financial management expertise. In assessing the
independence of the Directors, the Board has examined the different relationships
identified under the Listing Rules that might impair the Directors’ independence and
objectivity. The Board considers that all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent and are satisfied with the Directors’ ability to act with independent
judgment. Furthermore, each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has provided
to the Company an annual confirmation of independence required by Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Any further re-appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has
served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to be

approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the Independent

Non-Executive Directors are representing at least one-third of the Board.

RELATIONSHIP

There is no financial, business, family and other material relationship among other members

of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively responsible for the Company’s
activities and affairs. The Board members are free to discuss issues properly put to the
Board meetings and express their views and concerns. No individual or small group can

dominate the Board's decision-making process.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution of the Board.
The Board will take into account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set
out in the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall vote on any board
resolution approving any matters in which he has material interests or shall he be counted

in the quorum present at the meeting.
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MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and holds additional meetings as
and when the Board thinks appropriate. Board Committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone or video-conference are
permitted under the Bye-Laws of the Company. Attendance record of the Board and

Board Committees meetings during FY2022 is set out below.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
Board/Board Committees meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board

Committees on compliance matters.

In an attempt to accommodate the competing time commitments of Directors who sit on
multiple boards, dates of Board/Board Committees meetings are scheduled well in advance
at the beginning of every calendar year. The Company has given at least 14 days’ notice
for regular Board and Board Committees meetings. For all other Board/Board Committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Draft agendas for Board and Board Committee
meetings are circulated to all Directors for comment before the meetings. The Directors
were given the opportunities to include matters to be discussed in the agenda for all Board

and Board Committees meetings.

The agenda accompanied by detailed Board papers (prepared in such form and manner as
will enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it, including
but not limited to, background or explanatory information relating to matters to be
brought before the Board and internal financial information such as quarterly management
accounts, forecasts and budgets with material variance between projections and actual
results explained) are circulated to all Directors in a timely manner and at least three days

before the date of scheduled meeting.

Minutes of Board/Board Committees meetings are recorded in detail regarding the matters
considered and decisions reached, including concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant Directors/committee members
within a reasonable time after the meetings for comments and will then be approved
by the Board/Board Committees at the following meeting. Minutes of Board and Board
Committees meetings are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate explanation and
information about the Company and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances from a planned course of actions to
enable them to make an informed decision or assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. In case when
the Directors have queries, they are provided with the names and contact details of the
Group's senior executives for separate and independent access to them and they are able
to obtain more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact with the Board at Board

meetings and other events.

The Board and Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to properly
discharge their duties including access to independent professional advisers under agreed

procedures, upon reasonable request, at the expense of the Company.

The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of the Board during the Year ~EEENEBEAFEANLEEE LB
are as follows: (I
Board General

meetings meetings
Directors B= Exgea BREAE
Executive Director: HITEE .
Zhu Yongning RoKE 4/4 12
Non-Executive Director: FUITES:
Cui Xiao ER 4/4 plp)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAFHITES :
Zhou Meilin ZES 4/4 02
Zhou Rui [ 4/4 112
Xu finwen (£37:5°¢ 4/4 02
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In addition to the above regular Board meetings during the Year, the members of the
Board of Directors followed the principles of good corporate governance and the best
practices of the relevant code provisions and recommendations of the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and maintained a continuous dialogue with
shareholders, especially through the AGM or other plenary meetings to communicate with
the shareholders. Pursuant to code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, Independent Non-
Executive Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general meeting.
However, due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, Mr. Zhou Meilin and Mr. Xu Jinwen,
the Independent Non-Executive Directors, were unable to attend the AGM 2022 of the
Company. Mr. Zhu Yongning, the Executive Director, Mr. Zhou Meilin, Mr. Zhou Rui and
Mr. Xu Jinwen, the Independent Non-Executive Directors, were unable to attend the

special general meeting of the Company held on |8 February 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board has established four Board Committees,
namely the executive committee (the “EC"), audit committee (the “AC"), NCGC and
remuneration committee (the “RC") with specific written terms of reference that clearly
deal with their authority and duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs,
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities enable the Board Committees to
perform their functions properly. Board Committees report to the Board on their work
and findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and
inclusion of agenda items, recording and availability of minutes. The written terms of
reference of the AC, NCGC and RC, which are in line with the CG Code, are available on
the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed from time to

time. The quorum necessary for transaction of business of each Board Committee is two.
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EC

During FY2022, the EC comprised of all Executive Directors.

The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day management of the Group
and has all the general powers of the Board except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board.

The principal duties of EC include:

. managing the business and investments by overseeing the Group's operations,
projects, assets and liabilities, budgets, compliance obligations and financial

performance in accordance with the policies and directives of the Board;

. making recommendations to the Board as to the Group’s overall policies, strategies
and financial objectives in the development of its business and ensuring their

implementation and execution; and

. providing leadership to staff and management and nominating key personnel and

ensuring appropriate levels of authority are delegated to them.
NCGC

During FY2022, the NCGC is chaired by Mr. Zhou Rui, an Independent Non-Executive
Director, and comprised another two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Xu Jinwen and Mr. Zhou Meilin. The NCGC meets at least once a year. As at 3|

December 2022, all NCGC members are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The principal functions of the NCGC include:

making recommendations to the Board on all new appointments or reappointments
of Directors, the establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular the
chairman and CEO and the composition of the Board;

identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject to the approval of the Board,
to be additional Directors or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;
reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size and composition and the
independent element of the Board;

developing the criteria for selection of Directors;

assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations after each meeting.
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During the Year, two meetings were held by the NCGC. Details of the attendance of the ~ RAFERN @ RE KD EERZ B HETT
NCGC meeting are as follows: MAEE EFHERERGEEREZES
SR ZRREFEWT
Attendance
Directors B= HE IR
Zhou Rui (Chairman) B (EFE) 22
Xu Jinwen TRIBIL 22
Zhou Meilin ZES plp)
The main works performed by NCGC during the Year included reviewing the structure BEZRPEERTEeNAFEERITZEE
and composition of the Board, assessing independence of existing Independent Non-  T{EB#FER T EEFSNEBMANK « FEIR
Executive Directors and putting forward recommendations to the Board on re-election f{?ﬁi;ﬁ#ﬂﬁ'%%ﬁl\]ﬁi‘E&ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ
of retiring Directors as well as reviewing the updated board diversity policy and ~ BEERFEFHBI N AETESREMET
recommending the same to the Board for approval. HNEFEL TLER
RC FHEES
During FY2022, the RC is chaired by Mr. Xu Jinwen (an Independent Non-Executve ~ R-ZEE- "B HEE  FHEESHBHEX
Director) and comprised two members, namely, Mr. Zhou Rui and Mr. Zhou Meilin. As at 5‘&’_{(3%1%%%—}%%)%1{35{“ B FERR
31 December 2022, all RC members are Independent Non-Executive Directors. IR E - BVARAEERAEMEE - R
“ZF+ZA=t—H A Mihaﬂ
B RBUINITES

The RC consults the chairman and the CEO about its proposals relating to the
remuneration of other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if

considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC include:

. recommending to the Board on the Company's policies and structure for the

remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

. recommending to the Board the remuneration packages of all Executive Directors

and senior management; and

. reviewing and approving the management's remuneration proposals with reference

to the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and recommendations,

where appropriate, for the Board' s consideration and/or approval.
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During FY2022, two meetings were held by the RC. Details of the attendance of the RC ATECCHRFE  HHEE S EBRITH
meeting are as follows: ReF ERHRTFMNEE SR 228
B

Attendance
Directors BE HE R
Xu Jinwen (Chairman) RE(EE) 212
Zhou Meilin EES 22
Zhou Rui 2k 22

The main works performed by RC during FY2022 included reviewing the annual
remuneration of Directors and senior management and recommending the remuneration

of newly appointed Directors to the Board of Directors.

A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
as well as the basis of determining the emolument payable to each Directors for FY2022
are disclosed in the sub-section of “Human Resources and Remuneration Policy” in the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report and note 10 to the

consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report.

AC

During FY2022, the AC consisted of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhou Meilin (chairman), Mr. Zhou Rui and Mr. Xu Jinwen. The Board is of the opinion
that the majority of the members of the AC possess accounting and financial management

expertise or experience required to discharge their duties.

The major duties of AC include:

. considering and recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of

external auditor;

. approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor, any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

. reviewing and monitoring external auditor's independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
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. discussing with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting . R I TIZ 3R BN R B A A o
obligations before the audit commences; Bz ME RERNBRERET

. developing and implementing policy on the engagement of an external auditor . FLIE A ONS I SRR Mt IR RIS T

to supply non-audit services and making recommendation of any measures for FREBE  THBENECFHIEY
improvements to be taken; EREN

*  monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual and interim reports and reviewing ~ *  ERFBEHRE - FERFHREHTE

significant financial reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard, the AC 1 WEBEMHEMMERREX
reviews the interim and annual financial statements and the annual and the interim FIET - BT S - BREEENERE
reports before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on: ZERATERP AR FEMBREE
FERPHRER  CEEFRATE
I8 :
() any changes in accounting policies and practices; () (EAIEFEERRENED
(i) major judgmental areas; iy WREZHEOHS ;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (i) RAEBMEEERHE
(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; (v TERELERINENREE
8
(v)  compliance with accounting standards; v =~REETEEL:
(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to vy REBERETHRMNKREMEEN
financial reporting; and BRMEBIRE &
(vii) any matters that have been raised by the Company's staff responsible for the (i) HAREEEEGTRMBRET
accounting and financial reporting function or auditors; ez B TSR BRI L 2 (21
£H:
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reviewing the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management

systems,

discussing with the management the system of internal control and ensuring that
the management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget;

considering major investigations of findings on internal control matters as delegated

by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring co-ordination between the internal
and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company and reviewing and

monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any material queries raised by
the auditor to management in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management's response and ensuring that the Board will

provide a timely response to the issues raised;

reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

reviewing the arrangements the Group's employees can use, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The AC should ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and

independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up action; and

reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to consider other topics, as
defined by the Board.
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The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter under the scope of its duties
and the authority to obtain independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
cooperation of the management. It has been provided with reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the chief financial officer to gather

relevant information.

During FY2022, two meetings were held by the AC. Details of the attendance of the AC

meetings are as follows:

EVZEQAANMES)  REREHEN
EEMEEREREMBUZEXER Y&

BEERUZEANIHRBIGE - BZ
ZESRREHAEMNER  UZR/ETER
% EEHASEZHBERNBRET &
RZECREZTS NUBAEZTHE IR
SEREH -

%ﬁi%g AR _HMBERETMAE
GERBEERE CHECHFENT

Attendance
Directors = HERE
Zhou Meilin (Chairman) EEM(ER) 2
Xu finwen IR 212
Zhou Rui [E8 22

The major works performed by the AC during FY2022 included the review and
consideration of significant accounting and audit issues arising from annual audit of the
Group's financial statements; budget; periodic reports from internal audit department;

internal audit plan; external auditor’s audit and non-audit fees.

Full minutes of the AC are kept at the Board office. Draft and finalised minutes of the
AC meetings are circulated to all members of the AC for their comment and records

respectively, in both cases within reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct by Directors and officers of the Group
on terms no less favourable than the standards set out by the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as disclosed above, all Directors

confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout FY2022.
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The Board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model
Code.

Directors as well as officers of the Company who are in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in shares

of the Company and are also prohibited from dealing in shares during the black-out period.

INSURANCE

Pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against the Directors. During
FY2022, no such insurance cover has been arranged for the Directors due to the insurance
company refusing to provide service within the Company's budget. The management of
the Group believe that all potential claims and legal actions against the Directors can be
handled effectively, and the possibility of actual lawsuits against the Directors is remote.
The Company will consider making insurance arrangement when a quote within the
Company's budget is available. The Company will continue to review and enhance its

corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of the Company and of the
Group. Their responsibilities have also been stated in the section headed “Independent
Auditor's Report” contained in this annual report. In preparing the financial statements
for FY2022, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made accounting judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
in the circumstances. With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors ensure
that the financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with statutory

requirements and appropriate financial reporting standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the Board with appropriate and
relevant information on an accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group's actual performance with budget and highlighting
major relevant issues are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment
on the Group’s performance, position and prospects. Under the CG Code, monthly

updates are required to be provided to all Directors.
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The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects to extend to the Group's financial reporting
including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as

information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results and reports in accordance

with the requirements under the Listing Rules.
External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (“Forvis Mazars")
(formerly known as Mazars CPA Limited). The AC is responsible for considering the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors. The Board has no

disagreement with the AC’s view on the re-appointment of external auditor.

The statement of Forvis Mazars, the independent auditor of the Company, regarding their
reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for FY2022 is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” contained in this annual report.

Representatives from Forvis Mazars met up with the AC in meetings to answer questions.

For FY2022, fees paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Forvis Mazars, by the

Group are as follows:
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational adequacy

and effectiveness.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems encompass their policies,

processes, tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

. facilitate their effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond appropriately
to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other risks with a
view to achieving business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of assets from
inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified

and managed;

. help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable

financial information for intemal or external reporting; and

. help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and also with

intemal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than

eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective risk management and

internal controls are as follows:

. A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines of authority and
responsibilities. Division/department heads are involved in preparing the strategic
plan which lays down the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational and financial targets.
Both the strategic plan and the annual operating plan lay down the foundation for
the preparation of the annual budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritised business opportunities. The annual operating plan is
submitted for approval by the EC subject to regular review. The strategic plan is
presented to the Board by management subject to regular review and the annual

budget is approved by the Board yearly;
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. A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in place providing
financial and operational performance indicators to the management, and the
relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Variances against
budgets are analysed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if necessary,

to rectify deficiencies noted; and

. System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage and control risks
including legal, credit, market, operational, environmental, behavioral and system

risks that may have an impact on the Group.

The Group's internal audit department (“IA") performs audit reviews of the risks and
key controls of the Group. IA plays an important role in monitoring the Group's internal
governance, evaluating the quality of the risk management and internal control systems
and informing the Board whether sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes and
standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the head of 1A

reports directly to the AC on audit matters and to the CEO on administrative matters.

Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its interal audit projects annually
in consultation with, but independent of, management. The audit methodology and
process adopted by IA include understanding and analysing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes; analysing and evaluating the process control effectiveness and
communicating results and follow up. Independent reviews of different financial, business
and functional operations and activities will be conducted with audit resources being
focused on higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of concem

identified by the AC and the management.

The Company has established written policies and procedures on daily operations, covering
process flow, methodology adopted, reviewing process and reporting system. Division/
department heads will be notified of the control deficiencies noted for rectification, and
IA will follow up with the implementation of audit recommendations. Significant internal
control weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC and if necessary to the Board,

and to the senior management for remedial actions.
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During the Year, the Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews on a regular basis, of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control systems covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions and gave due deliberation/consideration to the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience of the accounting and financial reporting

function.

Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy has been adopted by the Board for the Group's
employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible

improprieties in any matters related to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information in a clear, detailed,
timely manner and on a regular basis and to take into consideration their views and inputs,
and address shareholders’ concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a

whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of annual and
interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and documents required
to be published pursuant to the Listing Rules, and press releases. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkex.com.hk

or the Company's website at www.idt-hk.com.

The AGM of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of AC, NCGC and/or RC,
or in their absence, members of the Board Committees are generally available to answer

shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the general

meetings are properly counted and recorded.

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there are any questions from the
shareholders. The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”)

The Directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,

forthwith proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's

principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the

Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the said date.
Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM should submit a
written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in

the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact information and
addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit 612, 6/F, Bank of America Tower, |12 Harcourt Road,
Central, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board and is responsible for assisting the Board
to follow the Board procedures and policies. Mr. Chen Kun, the Company Secretary of
the Company during FY2022, had attended relevant professional seminars to update his
knowledge and skills. He had complied with the Listing Rules and taken no less than |5

hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises that effective communication to investors is the key to establishing

investor confidence and attracting new investors.

Measures taken by the Group include:

. Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders. All results
announcements and reports are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.

. The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards received,
product launches and the latest news of the Group’s developments on the
Company's website. The public are welcome to give their comments and make their
enquiries through the Company's website and the management will provide their

prompt response.

. The constitutional documents of the Company can be found on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and there is no change in the Company's

constitutional documents during the period under review.
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The Group complies with the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
During the Year, it was committed to raising the environmental, social and governance of
the Group to a higher level, and hereby presents its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report for the Year prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and

Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

. SCOPE

This report is focused on reporting the performance of the Group in promoting
corporate social responsibility during the period from | January 2022 to 3|
December 2022, mainly including the disclosure of the policies and practices which
are of material concem to key social institutions and individuals, including investors,
employees, customers, government, suppliers and contractors, communities and
the public (the “stakeholders”) as well as the key performance indicators, covering
the two business segments owned by the Group, and the daily operations of the

Group's Hong Kong office and Shenzhen factory.

The Shenzhen factory was suspended with effect from 5 March 2022, the tenancy
of factory was terminated on 3| May 2022.
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BRI HERERRE
COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS 2. EERZANSH

The Group has established various channels to allow stakeholders to participate

in the Company's operations, and to understand and monitor the Company's

operating conditions, so as to promote the formation of a community of harmony

and common interest between the Group and stakeholders and realise maximum

comprehensive social interest, which includes optimal corporate revenue.

Stakeholders can participate in the Company's operations through the following

channels:

Stakeholders

BEA

Key targets and interests

IRAGREEH

Channels and means of

communication and participation
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Company measures

D EE I

Shareholders and

investors

BREEEE

Robust operations, revenue and
returns, protection of shareholders’
interest, true, accurate and timely

disclosure of information.

General meetings, investors’
conferences and site visits, disclosure
of information (including financial
statements) and contact information

of the Company.

BRRAG  REEZANER
ERRE(EMBRE) R AR
E YEN

Publication of notifications and resolutions of
the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of
information of the Company in accordance
with rules; organisation of various investor
activities to enhance investor recognition;
publication of the Company’s contact
information on the Company's website and
reports, and ensuring communication channels
remain smooth.
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Channels and means of

Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company measures

BEA IREEREIRH BRSELANEE RRERE

Employees Protection of basic rights,  Workers union, communication  Establishment of workers union to provide
welfare and remuneration, work  channels between employees and ~ workers with a platform to communicate;
environment, development  management, feedback boxes, staff ~ payment of salaries and benefits in full and on
opportunities, occupational health  activities, training and education. time; payment of social security insurance in
and safety, realisation of self-worth. accordance with law; provision of a healthy

and safe working environment; establishment
of a fair promotion mechanism; caring about
our employees, organising employee activities,
trainings and leamning activities.
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Customers Guarantee product quality — Regular visits and communication. A central email system, Red-Mine, has
and delivery, long-term stable  Strengthening of quality control,  been implemented throughout the Group,
cooperation. assurance of steady production and ~ to improve email communication and

smooth logistic process; provision  follow-up efficiency, and a technical study
of adequate products; entering into  into an automatic reply smart service for our
long term sales agreements with  customer email mailbox is in progress.
customers.
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Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company measures
BEA IREEREIRH BESESANEE RRERE
Government Lawful operations, payment of  Site visits, inspections, work  Conduction of operation in accordance with
tax in accordance with the law,  conference and discussion, work  the law; compliance management, payment of
production safety, fulfilment of  reports, submissions and approvals. tax in accordance with the law; strengthening
social responsibility. of the Company’s safety management;
acceptance of government supervision,
inspection and examination in accordance
with regulations, active assumption of social
responsibilities.
245 BAEE  OEAR - 2t REAE RE - THERW K2 AREE  REAH Bl
E-BITHERE- & THERS - 3k - it - AREER  RAETRIBAEE RS
LBRSER  BRAELGERE-
Suppliers and Fair bidding, long-term stable  Public bidding meetings and business  Fair bidding, selection by merit, performance
contractors cooperation and timely payment. meetings, regular communications. of contractual obligations, strengthening of
regular communications, maintenance of long
term cooperation with quality suppliers and
contractors.
HER ABRE ATHER REBTAE R HAREEIE AHg BEE L/THR EEEE ROEGTER M
BT R o e BABRRN  BEEREHNEABHERE
A%

Community and

the public

HHEEAR

Job opportunities, community
development, ecological

environment, compensation and

assistance.
phE#RE  HEERE - AR

5 IERED -

Co-hosting of community activities,
charity, volunteer service and

co-construction of the community.

K REE)  BERD - TR
%%%*HE%L%E°

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels for
the community and the community members;
hosting of community activities, promotion of
the building of harmonious community.
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3. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE 3. RiE
3. Environment 3.1 BRE
3.1.1 Emissions 3.1.1

Responding actively to the global trend of emission reduction, the Group
is committed to minimising release of greenhouse gases, wastewater, solid
wastes and other pollutants in its daily operations. Therefore, a series of
environmental policies have been developed to strengthen the control of

emissions, including;

Waste reduction

Most of the electronic waste generated in the manufacturing process,
including the scrapped circuit boards, scrapped parts and malfunctioned
components, are returned or handled directly by recycling companies. At the
same time, the Group continues to seek improvements in the manufacturing
process and technology in order to increase productivity and reduce
generation of scrapped electronic products and parts during the production

process.

To reduce the generation of waste from factory logistics, the application of
reusable boxes has been increased, reducing waste generated from the use

of easily damaged logistics equipment made of paper or plastic.

The Group conducts waste categorisation for proper disposal. Recyclables are
identified and sorting bins are placed while waste sorting training programmes
are conducted to encourage employees to actively participate in waste

recycling.

Electronic products involve application of batteries. The Group understands
the far-reaching impact of batteries on the environment and therefore has
designated old battery collection locations to promote appropriate handling

and recycling of disposed batteries.
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Other than used batteries, the Group is also concerned with waste
cardboard. Therefore, recycling bins have been set up and recycling

companies have been engaged to handle waste papers.

The Group regularly evaluates the production process to find out the sources
of hazardous wastes, and defines action plans to reduce these wastes. The
Group also put labels to differentiate hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
to facilitate hazardous wastes being handled properly by the qualified service

providers.

Currently, the hazardous wastes produced by the Group include used
batteries, sewage sludge, oil rags and contaminated gloves; whereas non-

hazardous wastes mainly include disposed capsules and carton wastes.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 and the suspension of the Group
business in March 2022, the Group was unable to collect accurate information
regarding the results for the waste reduction. The Group will disclose relevant

information once its operations have returned to normal.

Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group's factory in Shenzhen discharges both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The factory has installed sewage treatment facilities to reduce
the pollutants in the wastewater, and has additional facility for re-use of the
treated wastewater. This approach not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also helps the Group to use less fresh water.
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Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emission

The Group seeks to adopt renewable or other clean energy in replacement
of coal combustion facilities in order to reduce the generation and emission
of sulphur and nitrogen oxides. In addition, the Group actively implements

other administrative means to reduce GHG emissions, including:

Reduction of business trips

The Group thoroughly understands that business trips increase energy
consumption and lead to an increase in GHG emissions; therefore, the Group
actively decreases the number of business trips to reduce GHG emissions,
and switches to other effective communication methods, including avoidance
of long-distance meetings which are replaced with telephone and/or video
conferences, as well as using bulk courier service instead of conducting

delivery ourselves to reduce GHG emissions from additional traffic.

Sourcing from local suppliers

Similar to business trips, sourcing with non-local suppliers requires additional
transportation which increases energy consumption and GHG emissions.
Preference is given to local suppliers as long as they meet the Group's
requirements. In each procurement process, the Group will firstly consider
and invite local suppliers to provide quotations and product information, and
then giving balanced consideration to factors such as raw material quality, cost
and environmental protection. Non-local procurement will be considered

only when the local suppliers fail to meet the relevant conditions.
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Environmental education

The Group understands the long-term impact of the electronics industry on
the environment, and hence has taken on an active role in the supply chain to
promote the importance of emission reduction. The Group has established
environmental management measures for suppliers to follow, including: for
all vehicles that enter the Group'’s premises, engines must be tumed off and
may not be kept idle which emits exhaust within the factory's premises; the
exhaust emissions need to comply with the environmental requirements; all
persons within the factory's premises shall abide by the requirements such
as waste classification, no littering and no smoking. In addition, the Group
requires chemical suppliers and transporters to ensure that chemicals are
protected against leakage before arrival and the packaging, containers and
labels of chemicals must comply with the relevant regulatory requirements;
and the supply of materials, semi-finished products and finished products
shall not contain any intentional or unintentional addition of flammable and

explosive substances.

The Group also incorporates the concept of environmental protection
into employee’s annual training program to enhance their environmental
awareness. Environmental training topics include RoHS, ISO 14001
environmental awareness, waste classification, chemical safety and so on. For
key positions such as manufacturing and cleaning, trainings are provided to
new employees of each month to ensure that they can classify and identify
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well as arrange the qualified recycling

companies for handling.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any non-compliance
incidents of environmental legislations. Due to the impact of the COVID-19
and the suspension of the Group business in March 2022, the Group was
unable to collect accurate information regarding the emission volumes of
GHG. The Group will disclose relevant information once its operations have

returned to normal.

BB - g RERHRE

RRHUE

SEABEFEFUYRRNRE
TR WHERERTEERGY
BB BOEERENERNE
HETREEEERERHEER
&5 B VEARBRAME
W FERMUBRR - NMERE
SIEEHVERENFHER
ERANHNEANTARERENR
EABEE A8 WEETH IR
PR BRI RIS
Ek e fphh - REER(CERHE
BN E R B m B AT
B R RER - ML2mNE
K DHERERFVANTEERE
EPIER  REEROWE - FK
mMKR TSR EEMNERNL
FEERNN SR B EDE -

SETHRERERSMAET
R FEFIIETEIF - BAAIIR
RREH RRBIRELRE
RoHS ~ ISO 14001 IRIR B34 - BEE
Mok tERR2E - STHE
ERERSHREN FABA
AR B TREEI - R
MR R EREEEEYEE
EREEY YRR ERHE R
NGI) L

EREHE SERBEENER
REEPNEREE - ARK
COVID- 19 EREBEBK T
“ZHE=ZREE KEEREK
SEBRERBHMENERE
£ o REBREBMEE SRR
RIEEER

i

Annual Report 2022 £ 49



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

50

3.1.2 Use of Resources

The Group understands that the resources on the planet are limited,
therefore appropriate measures have been implemented to enhance the

efficiency of resources used, including:

Energy saving

In order to reduce energy consumption, the Group uses energy-efficient
products and equipment as much as possible, and actively plans to replace
equipment with high energy consumption, such as replacement of the
factory's traditional electric lights with LED lights in 2018. The air conditioning
system uses a central control to effectively manage the temperature of each
department and automatic shutdown is scheduled at a specified time to
reduce additional energy consumption caused by uncontrolled temperature
adjustments. In addition, an employee’s code for energy saving has been
formulated, which requires employees to tumn off electrical devices in office
and production when off work, in order to ensure all machinery are shut
down when out of working hours. The goal is to help employees nurture a

habit of “shutting down machinery when leaving workplace”.

Water conservation

In addition to re-use of treated wastewater, the Group has adopted
various administrative measures to enhance water consumption efficiency.
Wastewater is collected in daily operations and used for non-production
purposes, such as toilet flushing or floor cleaning. Inspection and timely repairs
for leakage are conducted on water-consuming equipment in the production
workshops and offices to avoid water wastage. Also, water conservation
slogans are posted on bulletin boards to enhance employees' awareness
of water conservation, and remind employees and visitors of water saving.
During meetings, bottled water is replaced by reusable water containers to

change the unfavourable employees’ habit of using bottled water at meetings.
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The Group's production site in Shenzhen has demonstrated the following
achievements in the reporting period through the implementation of the

aforesaid policies and measures for water conservation.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any non-compliance
incidents of environmental legislations. Due to the impact of the COVID-19
and the suspension of the Group business in March 2022, the Group was
unable to collect accurate information regarding the results of the aforesaid
policies and measures for water conservation. The Group will disclose

relevant information once its operations have retumed to normal.

Saving of office resources

Electronic documentation is promoted in daily operation, hardcopies are
replaced by electronic files in computer and whenever possible paperless
office operation is implemented to reduce the use of paper consumables.
The Group sets targets on paper usage, setting out expectations on paper
saving for all departments. Employees are required to practice double-sided
printing. When copying or printing files, paper with only one side used should
be collected for re-use to save paper. The amount of paper used in 2022

decreased compared to 2021.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any non-compliance
incidents of environmental legislations. Due to the impact of the COVID-19
and the suspension of the Group business in March 2022, the Group was
unable to collect accurate information regarding the key resources consumed.
The Group will disclose relevant information once its operations have

returned to normal.
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3.1.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the environmental concemns from both community
and customers. The Company promotes policy on green manufacturing and

green procurement policy:

Green procurement policy

Subject to fulfillment of the Group's operating and pricing requirements,
preference is given to suppliers who are able to provide environmentally
friendly products and/or services, including environmentally certified
materials or services (such as RoHS and REACH compliant materials), use
of products made of natural materials, products free of toxic and hazardous
substances, and other products/devices compliant with the relevant
environmental regulations. The Group has been actively promoting the
proportion of environmental suppliers (the proportion of suppliers providing
environmentally friendly materials to the total suppliers), with the goal that

the materials provided by suppliers are 1009% RoHS compliant.

Green manufacturing policy

Since the Group’s business is the manufacturing of electronic products, the
main environmental impacts are electronic waste generation and resource
consumption during the production process. Therefore, a green manufacturing
policy has been implemented along with the green procurement policy
to provide customers with environmental compliant products, including
compliance with the local environmental laws for importing countries, such as
RoHS, REACH.

The Group is committed to the use of energy-efficient and water-efficient
equipment in the manufacturing process. Resource recycling process is
established to collect the reusable packaging materials for proper handling,
in order to reduce waste generation and wastage of various production
resources. A sewage treatment plant treats wastewater from production
to meet environmental standards, which is then is recycled to be used for
production or other purposes. This not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also decreases the total water consumption.
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The Group has formulated day-to-day management measures to reduce and
control the emissions of hazardous wastes. Annual environmental trainings
are provided to employees to enhance their environmental awareness and to

implement environmental management measures.

In addition, the Group regularly monitors its significant environmental
impacts to ensure compliance with local regulations. Regular environmental
investigations are conducted to ensure timely discovery of non-compliance

incidents and implementation of corrective and preventive actions.

Society

3.2.1 Employment

In addition to complying with local employment regulations, the Group has
also formulated a series of employment policies to ensure that employees are

treated in a fair and reasonable manner.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees through the company’s website, email,
advertisements, etc., and gives equal opportunity to every job applicant.
The Group does not reject applicants out of gender, age, race, and other
physical conditions. Employment decisions are solely based on fulfilment of
the job requirements, and the Group does not discriminate against physically
disabled applicants. Besides local applicants, applicants of other ethnicities and
nationalities are also considered at the time of recruitment, including ethnic

minorities and expatriates.

Regarding the mechanism for employee’s promotion, the Group only refers
to the employee’s performance, experience and competence, and does not
consider other irrelevant attributes such as marital status, physical condition

and gender, etc.
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Wages and benefits

The Group enters into a contract of employment with its employees
in accordance with local laws to ensure employees’ legal rights in the
employment relationship, including the payment of legal minimum wage,
and employees' entitlement to paid holidays, vacation, sick leave and leave
for work-related injury. In addition to the purchase of social insurance for
employees according to local employment regulations, the Group also
purchases commercial insurance beyond the local regulations in order
to reduce employee's cost of seeking for medical services. In case of
work-related injuries and accidents, the Group will arrange reasonable

compensation for its employees and their families in accordance with laws.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover or receive any
violations or complaints regarding discrimination or recruitment. As of 3|
December 2022, the total number and distribution of employees within the

Group are as follows:
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Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
—EBCoCE —T—F
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender 5 wIN B8 R
Male I 50 | 121
Female 3 46 3 228
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Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
kSt ;3 —E-—fF
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Job type THEER &t sl ) sl
Full-time g2 4 96 - 349
Part-time SEEY 0 0 0 0

Number of employees

EEAH
2022 2021
—EH T —F
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age ETFiR BB gl &R sl
18-30 18-30 0 4 0 9
31-45 31-45 3 45 3 203
46-60 4660 I 47 | 135
> 60 > 60 0 0 0 2
Total B2 4 9 4 349
Average monthly employee turnover rate (%)
FHIBREERKE %)
2022 2021
—EH —E-—F
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender Al B8 3l BE wI
Male Bt 0 5917 0.167 0017
Fernale g 0 15.167 0056 002
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Average monthly employee turnover rate (%)

Y5 ARERAEY)

56

322

2022 2021
—E-C-F 2

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age BIfFk B8 I BB el
18-30 18-30 0 0417 0 0.07
31-45 31-45 0 13.167 0.1 0.02
46-60 46-60 0 7.33 0 0.02
> 60 > 60 0 0 0 0
Total e 0 6971 0.1 0037
Health and Safety 322 REHEZE

The Group is committed to achieving the goal of zero work accidents
through different measures to prevent the occurrence of occupational

diseases and work-related injuries and fatalities.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group conducts annual safety monitoring to identify potential safety
hazards, and implement corrective and preventive actions in a timely manner.
The Group installed protective devices for the production equipment and
machinery in the workplace to ensure that employees are not exposed to
dangerous parts. The compliance of the workplace is monitored, including
the provision of adequate fire equipment and regular safety inspection. In
addition, suppliers are requested to follow safety practice within the Group’s
premises. All vehicles within the premises must be limited to the speed of
10 km/hour with no horns allowed. Their driving routes shall follow the

instructions from the security team.
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Employee Safety Training

The Group provides personal protective equipment to employees where
necessary, and arranges appropriate occupational health and safety trainings,
including the proper usage of protective equipment, awareness of safety
risks in the work place, content in the material safety data sheet and the
use, storage and emergency response to leakage of chemicals. The Group
also arranges fire and emergency drills regularly to train employees on the

evacuation routes at dangerous situations.

Work-life Balance

The Group never forces employees to work overtime, and regularly
organises recreational activities, psychological counselling and trainings to help
employees relieve stress, including psychological health seminars, family days,
tug-of-wars, seaside walk, watching movies, hand-craft, and explores various

sport activities amongst employees.

In addition, the Group is very concerned about how employees view the
Company, therefore employees’ communication channels and suggestion
boxes have been set up. The suggestions collected from the employees are
followed up on a regular basis. Employee representatives are selected from
each department with the Group and they shall meet regularly for discussion

and sharing.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any violations against
the local occupational health and safety regulations. Within the reporting
period, no work-related fatality and lost day due to work-related injury was

found.
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3.2.3 Development and Training

The Group has established a comprehensive training system. Apart from
general classroom trainings, the Group emphasises on-the-job exercises and
a mentor is assigned to every new employee. Through this apprenticeship
programme, the mentor gives hands-on guidance and supervises the new
employee in accomplishing his/her work, which enhances training efficiency
and the new employee’s performance. Adjustments could be made to the
apprenticeship program according to the new employee's competence and
experience. At the same time, based on the Group's strategies for product
and business development, career development plans are formulated for

employees to support the sustainable development of the Group's business.

During the reporting period, the monthly average percentage of employees
who have received training within the Group and the monthly average

number of trained hours received by each employee are as follows:

Monthly average percentage of

trained employees (%)

BN ERNEATEEI L

|
%

Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen  Hong Kong

323 BEREH

SEEYTENRIER KT
—REREFIN - RERAT
FEE  BRHEETHREMHN
BT - LAIER{E IO AR & 15
BREBHEITHIE &
AR e #T B TR - [RD7s
{E ISEFIAT AR 3T B TH N RIgE
RABSEKFEHBERE - FE
ORI e 2 ) B B R TS PR R R
HETHTBRER;E - R
DEBEEBOFERR -

EHREHHE - KEAEZIE
WEENEAFHEILRESA
BEMEAFOEIEENAT

Monthly average number of

trained hours per employee

SHEESNEATIILHINY
2022 2021
—ECCE —ZE--%

Shenzhen

R ikl BB A

2022 202

—ECCE —Z-
Hong Kong ~ Shenzhen  Hong Kong
Gender 37 BA i BE
Male S 0 55 0
Female i 0 55 0

0 2 0 0
0 2 0 45
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Monthly average percentage of

trained employees (%)

HERERRE

B -

Monthly average number of

trained hours per employee

EREINEENEATHALL BEEENEATIREIRY
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F —ECCE —E--F
HongKong ~ Shenzhen HongKong ~ Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen HongKong  Shenzhen
Employee level EE&H £l sl Bl el BB sl A il
Senior management BRER 0 50 0 12 0 2 0 10
Middle management PRERE 0 2 8 8 0 | 8 [
Junior employee MRET 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 58
Labour Standards 324 #HTEA
The Group strictly prohibits the employment of child labour and will only SEERELIERET - Rg
employ employees aged 18 or above. The Group follows the principle EEMISHALHBT &73:5
of voluntary overtime to ensure that employees are willing to work and TEREMRA - BREIEMHE
employee’s personal freedom is protected. The Group is committed not to I REEIAGEH A&

force employees to work overtime nor to work in any form of forced labour,

including not using any bonded labours such as prison workers.

For effective prevention of child labour, the applicant’s identity document
will be carefully examined at the time of recruitment to confirm the age of
the applicant, and the application from an applicant less than |8 years of age
shall be excluded. In addition, the Group's personnel management system
set up an alert function to signal any applicant under the age of 8. With this
double gate-keeping mechanism, the risk of recruitment of child labour could
be avoided. Under the daily management, child labour will be terminated

immediately when he/she is discovered within the Group.

o238 B TR T R AN A
FABEETIE  BEIER
RSB TMATE

BTERNBILET - EREN
STHEER-BENFNHERX
HUBEREGENFR - S5k

AR | STRIERE VR © WO -
SEMAESERZRARE T FR
KmI8RMIRERINAE - EILEE
ERAEH TREREETNRE
o AAREETWMERETE
SENTIE BEYAELER -

Annual Report 2022 £ 59



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

60

325

The Group has also set up measures to prevent forced labour. Employees
are required to submit working hours to their immediate supervisors. The
human resources department will review employees’ working hours, and
would investigate immediately and stop the relevant work assignment in case

of involuntarily overtime identified.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any employment
of child labour nor any violation against the laws and regulations related to

forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has developed supplier management policy for communication
to the suppliers the expectations of the Group and the requirements that
they need to abide by. The policy covers quality, environmental management,
health and safety, social responsibility, and anti-terrorism management, etc.
and these aspects are also the criteria for supplier selection. The Group
has established a supplier selection and evaluation procedure, which
conducted an initial review of new suppliers and an annual evaluation of
key suppliers in the form of on-site audits or questionnaires. The contents
of the evaluation include product quality, delivery time, environment, use of
environmental friendly materials, and management of hazardous substances.
After the evaluation, results shall be recorded as monitoring evidence for the

subsequent long-term partnership.
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Besides the aforesaid evaluation scope, procurement preference will be
given to local suppliers over their non-local counterparts who demonstrated
the same performance level from evaluation. Non-local suppliers shall be
considered only when no qualified local supplier available. Currently, local
suppliers account for approximately 100%. As of 31 December 2022, the

geographical distribution of the Group's suppliers is as follows:
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Number of suppliers

Geographical locations 1 I @i HEBYE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
China F | 51
Hong Kong Eit 0 17
USA XE 0 |
Taiwan a4 0 2
Germany =R 0 -
Others Hith 0 -
Product Responsibility 326 EmEF

All products of the Group are subject to strict quality inspection/testing
before shipping out of the factory, including the sampling and monitoring
of hazardous substances in incoming materials such as 201 1/65/EU the
management procedure for the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Products, in-process quality control,

and safety verification of the final products.

For product promotion and selling, the Group will ensure that the product
information provided to the customer is true and accurate to avoid misleading
the customer at the time of purchase. The Group also has designated
customer service personnel responsible for responding to customer inquiries

and initiating product recall when necessary.
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The Group has formulated a complaint handling mechanism to analyse with
the quality control department any complaints received from customers, and
will report the results of analysis and follow-up actions to customers within

the specified time frame.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any customer
complaint or violation against regulations related to product responsibility;
and no item among all products sold was recalled due to product safety and

health reasons.

Quality Assurance Process

The Group starts the quality control of products at the source. Materials
from suppliers are verified for quality before production, alternatively the
supplier is requested to provide a quality verification report for raw materials.
During the manufacturing process, production lines are inspected and semi-
finished products are sampled for verification to assure the process meets the
specified technical requirements. Final verification shall be executed by the
quality control department at the end of production; only finished products

which pass the verification could be delivered and sold.

Upon identification of abnormal products through either external or internal
findings, the Group shall discuss amongst the relevant departments about the
need for identification, segregation and recall of the abnormal products when
necessary. Whenever product recall is necessary, the Group shall collect
the relevant batches of products from the customer, and implement the

procedure of nonconforming products for analysis and disposal.

Product Recall/Return Procedure

The Group has established a product recall/return channel that allow
customers to report product defects through telephone or email. Internal
staff in the Group shall then evaluate the decision on product return upon
receipt of customer's report. Whenever product return is deemed necessary,
the marketing department shall inform the customer to retum the relevant
product. The warehouse department will record and track the returned
products, and notify the quality department to conduct cause analysis in order

to identify solutions and subsequent preventive measures.
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Intellectual Property Protection

All products sold by the Group are newly designed on our own. To confirm
intellectual property, products are regularly sampled to check if their designs
belong to the Group's own companies. Upon discovery of designs that

infringe copyright, the product will immediately be taken off shelves.

The Group only adopts products from its own design centre, and the design
centre does not plagiarize the design of other institutions. Design department
employees are prohibited by their employment contracts from any acts
of plagiarism and are required to undertake that all produced designs are
company property and to assume responsibility for the confidentiality of their

own produced designs.

Currently, the Group has 5 product patents registered in the USA, 4 product
patents registered in the European Union, 9 product patents registered in
the PRC, and | product patent registered in Hong Kong. For management of
information security, the Group has established a Knowledge Management
System (“KMS") through which information of the Group's own design and

product specifications from customers are encrypted to prevent data leakage.

The Group undertakes not to purchase any pirated office software, and such
software shall only be purchased from suppliers who have the appropriate
copyright; in addition, the IT Department conducts internal audit to monitor
any download of pirated software by employees. When employees are
discovered using pirated software, he/she will be instructed to delete the
pirated software immediately and issued a waming letter for prevention of

recurrence.
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Privacy Protection of Consumer Information

The Group has developed a policy for protection of consumer information
and privacy. Consumer information will not be used for publicity or
promotion without consumer’s permission. If business operations require
passing consumer data to contractors, the Group shall enter into a
confidentiality agreement with the contractor and require the contractor
to have a comprehensive information security management system for

preventing leakage and theft of customer information.

Anti-corruption

The Group has established corporate governance policies in accordance with
the CG Code from the Stock Exchange. Also, the Group has formulated
an anti-corruption policy and prohibits the Company’s Directors, managers,

employees and other representatives from giving or accepting bribes.

Internal Audit of Corporate Governance

The Group has established an AC which is responsible for developing internal
audit control procedures and annual audit plans for the Group. The AC
conducts audits in an ongoing and systematic manner in accordance with the
annual audit plan and the additional tasks delegated by the top management.
Audit reports are regularly communicated with the management and
disclosed to the AC. Corrective actions and subsequent follow-ups shall be

implemented in accordance with the time frame specified in the audit report.

Moreover, the Group engages an independent third party to audit the
Group's financial accounts, to ensure the Company’s accounts are clear and
accurate for enhancement of internal financial control and supervision so that

the interests of shareholders are protected.
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Anti-corruption Awareness

Training The Group declares its intemal code of integrity at least once a year
with an emphasis on the awareness of corporate integrity; this includes the
principle that the Group never owes compensation, benefits and bonuses to
its employees and never owes payments to its suppliers. Also, additional effort
is made to strengthen the awareness of anti-corruption to key departments
and positions. The Group communicates anti-corruption and integrity through
hotline, website and posters, and has established investigation channel for
employees to report suspected fraud or corruption and other illegal incidents

such as extortion and money laundering.

Whistle-blowing Procedure

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism and communication channel for
employees, customers and suppliers to freely report on any fraud, corruption
and other illegal incidents. The reporting person may send a written message
to the mailbox of IA in confidence and with anonymity. Upon receipt, the |1A
shall conduct investigation with other relevant departments such as human
resources, legal, logistics and career development, and then revert with the

investigation results to the reporting person.

Anti-corruption Measures

In addition, the Group has established anti-corruption measures for various
aspects, including the declaration of personal interests by new employees
upon commencing employment. Further, Directors are required to declare
according to the law their own interests including those in the competition
business; regarding procurement, evaluation from at least three suppliers is
required to obtain fair and reliable quotes for making procurement decision;
for approval of service contracts, different levels of personnel are authorized
corresponding to different levels of contract amount in order to ensure

adequate review.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any legal cases or

complaints related to corruption.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
report and audited financial statements of the Group during the year ended 3| December
2022 ("FY2022" or the “Year") and for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021™).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged
in investment holdings, design, development, manufacturing, sales and marketing of various
electronic products. Details of the principal activities of the Group are set out in note | to

the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of revenue and segment information are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for FY2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income included in this annual report and further analysis is

given in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out in the section headed "“Group Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid for FY2022 (FY2021: Nil).
The Directors do not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for FY2022 (FY2021:
Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2022 are set out in

note 26 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity contained in this annual report,
and the financial information of the Company in note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements contained in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company did not have reserves available for distribution as

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During FY2022, the Group did not make any spending (FY2021: Nil) on the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are

set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group had no purchase during FY2022. During FY2021, the Group's purchase
attributable to the largest supplier and five largest suppliers of approximately 18.2% and
41.7%, respectively.

During FY2022, the Group's total revenue was contributed by one customer, thus the
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer was approximately

100.0% of the Group's tumnover.

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders of the Company, who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any

interest in any of the five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during FY2022 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Director:
Zhu Yongning (Chief Executive Officer, Resigned on | February 2024)

Cheung Yuk Ki (Chief Executive Officer, Appointed on | February 2024)

Non-Executive Directors:

Cui Xiao
Ng Kwok Ying Isabella (Appointed on | February 2024)
Chen Tiger Charles (Appointed on | February 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Director:

Zhou Meilin (Resigned on | February 2024)
Zhou Rui (Resigned on | February 2024)

Xu Jinwen

In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company's Bye-Laws, any Director appointed as an
additional Director or to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of

Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors as

independent.
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Mr. Zhou Meilin and Mr. Zhou Rui have resigned as Independent Non-Executive Directors
on | February 2024. Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Meilin and Mr. Zhou Rui, the
number of independent non-executive Directors fell below the minimum number required
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number of audit committee members fell below
the minimum number required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, and the absence of
the chairman for the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee does not meet the
requirements under Rules 3.21 and Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules, respectively. Further,
composition of the Audit Committee would not include independent non-executive
Director with the Qualification as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, and the
Nomination Committee would not comprise a majority of independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules. The Board is endeavoring to

identify suitable candidates to fill the vacancies as soon as practicable.

DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out in the section of “Directors and

Senior Management of the Group” contained in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which can be terminated by either party giving a
three month’s written notice to the other party. Under such service contract, each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM of
the Company in accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee subject
to such adjustments as the Board of the Company considers appropriate and the approval
of the shareholders at AGM of the Company. Remuneration shall be paid to a Director for

appointment as a member of a particular committee.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

which subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
FY2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed herein, during the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates
had engaged in or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete with

the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had, as at
31 December 2022, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under the
provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Name Nature of interests
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Notes:

(1) Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd (“Huaneng”). Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest in the

shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.

(2)  The letter “L" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The effective share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on 29 August 2012. During FY2022, no share was granted, exercised, lapsed
or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2022, there was

no outstanding share option of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

No share options were granted to or exercised by the Directors during FY2022 and there is

no outstanding balance as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during FY2022 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouse
or children under the age of |18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,

or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company:

Name

£

FERR
NZZEZ—&F+-A=1+—8 " BARFE

ERITRAEI

C PIIAERAR B Z B

MEBRGOT BEARRREEARTE
1G5 3361678 T 17 < B ae i Prac sk ek B 41

China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Ltd
Zhu Yongning (Note 1)

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co, Ltd
(Note 2)
Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (Note 3)
Hongtu High Technology Int' Inc.

Notes:

(1) Zhu Yongning holds 100% of the equity interests of Huaneng Therefore, it is deemed to be
interested in the interest in the shares of the Company held by Huaneng through its subsidiary.

(2)  Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)"). Therefore, it is deemed
to be interested in the interest in the shares of the Company held by Hongtu (HK) through its

subsidiary (see note 3 below).

(3)  Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)”). Therefore, Hongtu (HK) is deemed to be interested in the 556,898,770 shares
of the Company beneficially owned by Hongtu (Seychelles) by virtue of its shareholding of

Hongtu (Seychelles).

B AMERIREARA
AKE (MR

HEERMBRB D ARLA (iE2)
TEEESHR (BB ARAF

(FE3)
Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc.

(4)  The letter “L" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares.

72 Annual Report 2022 £

BARRBZERIOKE
No. of % of the issued
shares held share capital
FEROBE HEBRTRABIL
753,997,995 (L) 29.00%
(Note 4) (H3E4)
753,997,995 (L) 29.00%
(Note 4) (PFi{7E4)
556,898,770 (L) 21.42%
(Note 4) (PFi{7E4)
556,898,770 (L) 21.42%
(Note 4) (H3E4)
556,898,770 (L) 21.42%
(Note 4) (PFi{7E4)
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any person (other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022 which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
at 31 December 2022.

There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights of the Company during FY2022.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the section of “Management

Discussion and Analysis” contained in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (i.e. the new Appendix C3 with effect from 31 December 2023), and has been

updated from time to time.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout FY2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During FY2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-Laws or the laws
of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained

sufficient public float throughout FY2022 as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (the “Auditor” or “Forvis Mazars") (formerly known Mazars
CPA Limited) was appointed as auditors of the Company with effect from 27 September
2019 to fill vacancy and was re-elected in the AGMs of the Company held on 24 July 2020,
25 June 2021 and 29 June 2022 and will be subject to reappointment in the forthcoming
AGM.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. As at the date of this report, the
Audit Committee comprises one independent non-executive Director, namely Mr. Xu

Jinwen.

The audited financial results of the Group for FY2022 have been reviewed by the Audit

Committee.
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THE BOARD’S RESPONSE TO THE AUDITOR’S OPINION

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The auditor of the Company, being Forvis Mazars, issued a disclaimer of opinion (the
"“Disclaimer of Opinion™) on the financial statements of the Company for FY2022 in
relation to going concem of the Company, details of which are set out in note 2 to the

consolidated financial statements contained in this annual report.

With respect to the Disclaimer of Opinion, after taking into consideration of the measures
(the “Measures”) set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements contained in
this annual report, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidation financial statements on a going concern basis.

However, as stated in the independent auditor's report contained in this annual report,
the Auditor is of the view that it has not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the use of going concern assumption in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements.

The Board’s Plan to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in the audited annual results of the Company, the Group recorded a loss

attributable to owners of the Group, net current liabilities and net liabilities.

The Board understands that the Disclaimer of Opinion was resulted from the auditors not
being able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves about the
appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements mainly due to: (1) the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets, and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets; (2) the Group
recorded significant net operating cash outflow for the year ended 3| December 2022; (3)
the Group's business operation has been suspended since 5 March 2022; and (4) there are

outstanding liabilities from legal proceedings that were due and yet to be settled.
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In view of such circumstances, the Directors have carefully considered future liquidity and

the financial position of the Group and the Group's available sources of financing and

operating cashflow in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources

to continue as a going concern. The Group has taken plans and measures to mitigate its

liquidity pressure and improve its financial position, including:

76

Resumption of operation

Since the re-commencement of the Group's operations in December 2023, the
Group has resumed sales of electronic products under the “Oregon Scientific”
trademark. Additionally, it launched its own online retail platform and established
two online stores on foreign platforms. The Group is continuously expanding
its product portfolio to meet new customer demands and enhance its market
competitiveness. As a result, the Group returned to a profitable position for the six

months ended 30 June 2024, based on the books and records currently available.

The Company had secured confirmed orders exceeding HK$70 million, which are
expected to be fulfilled and delivered in the third quarter of 2024. Based on the
Board's six-month forecast post 30 June 2024, it is anticipated that the Group will
remain profitable and generate positive operating cashflow for the year ending 31
December 2024. As a result, the Group’s current assets, especially trade receivables,
inventory, and cash and cash equivalents, will increase, which will, in tumn, improve
the net current liabilities and net liabilities situation of the Group. The disclaimer of

opinion concerning the suspension of the Group'’s business will not recur.

Formulation of corporate rescue plan

In light of the above and following the resumption of operation in December 2023,
the Group has been working closely with professional advisors in formulating a
corporate rescue plan intended for providing relief to the Group's indebtedness and

necessary funding for the continuing operations of the Group.
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An announcement will be published in accordance with the relevant rules and

regulations as and when appropriate.

3. Operational restructuring

Since the suspension of the Group's business operation in March 2022, certain
non-core subsidiaries of the Company have ceased operations, resulting in legal
proceedings against their outstanding liabilities. The Directors plan to carve-out
these non-core subsidiaries with net liabilities by way of including but not limited to

winding-up of such entities.

[t is anticipated that, upon completion of the abovementioned operational
restructuring measures, the Group's net liabilities position will further improve and
the outstanding legal proceedings of the non-core subsidiaries will no longer affect

the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account of the above-mentioned plans
and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. Consequently,

the underlying matters leading to the Disclaimer of Opinion could be resolved.

The audit committee concur with the views as stated above.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements contained in this annual report.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors’ Report

ESEHREE

RE B RARBARRAR A ROE AR E R T3
NG

EEEH

E$%E%:§:_¢ AEEX

%'$“7%F#V@W%A
E 28 RHRHHERER
H AR - EREHEIEB(BREED
RR)KAEER E%%W#ﬁu%%
BRI BREERDEILRK -

He
-
£

\»AIWUJIHJ

TET LR EEAEBTAE - A5E
B EFERRBEE—T0E - M3k
ZOMBRARKRTEOEERFAKTE
FEREEFELCENES -

EERA BERLAFIIRER  A%HE
%%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁAﬁﬁﬁ%@&Eﬁﬁm
A R REMANABEL - Hitt - EHAH
RERNEEEEGURR -

EZ

|E
HEHRFENFEENLIPHRRE2HE

- EgRBLEER -
HREE

BRI RE36 o

Annual Report 2022 £ 77



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Directors’ Report

ESEHREE

PERMITTED PROVISION BiEMBKRX

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out ~ HRIEAARZZMEA - REEHEHEREAEE
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as REEMREEAREIN —VEEXAE

a Director BARREETESHE -
On behalf of the Board REEZE

Cheung Yuk Ki REEH

Director EX

Hong Kong, 9 August 2024 BE —T-_WFN\ANA
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Forvis Mazars CPA Limited

EERESTMERMARAR

42nd Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREFBEE SRTRESNE

Tel B © (852) 2909 5555

Fax fEH : (852) 2810 0032
Email EF : info@mazarshk

Website #84E © www.forvismazars.com/hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 83
to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainty related to going concern

As described in the “Going concern” section in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$21,750,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 and, at 31
December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$327,563,000, respectively. As of 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements, the Group is subjected to a number of legal
proceedings and the Group is yet to settle majority of those outstanding legal proceedings
due to lack of sufficient funds which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Furthermore, the Group recorded net operating cash outflow of approximately
HK$25,357,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the Group’s bank balances
and cash remaining at a low level of approximately HK$430,000 as of 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic has affected the
Group's operation to the extent that the production of the Group’s leased factory in
Shenzhen was suspended with effect from 5 March 2022, the tenancy of factory was

terminated on 31 May 2022 as set out in note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

These events and conditions, along with other matters as set forth in the “Going concemn”
section in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, and, therefore, that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and

discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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The validity of the going concern assumption is dependent on the successful and favourable
outcomes of the plans and measures being taken by the management of the Group
and the development of the events, in particular, the successful implementation of the
liabilities restructuring plan as described in the “Going concem” section in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The management of the Group is of the opinion that
the Group would be able to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, and do not include any
adjustments relating to the recognition of provisions or the realisation and reclassification
of non-current assets that may be necessary if the Group is unable to continue as a going

concemn.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness
of the use of going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to reclassify non-current assets as current assets, and
to provide any further liabilities which may arise. The effects of these adjustments have not

been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic attemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor's report. However, because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit

evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 9 August 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number: P05510
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

IV A = > m é E L|& E i
For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE
NOTE 2022 2021
P et —B-CF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Revenue G 6 2,218 17,144
Cost of goods sold HERR (5,248) (15,286)
Gross (loss) profit (E8)EM (3,030) 1,858
Other income HiA 7 18,773 6,574
Other losses, net HEE  #8E 7 (567) (604)
Charge of loss allowance on financial assets ke EERIEEE (2,008) (8,760)
Research expenses MEFS (1,029) (13,799)
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHERX (565) (5.391)
General administrative expenses —RITHFAX (21,948) (45,567)
Losses from impairment HEEE 9 (6,223) (11,832)
Finance costs BEKA 9 (5,153) (6713)
Loss before taxation BB A& 1R 9 (21,750) (84.234)
Taxation A 12 - =
Loss for the year rEERSE (21,750) (84,234)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2HES :
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HETpe & B DT By
to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on translation of MEBIEBEENELZ5E
foreign operations (235) (74)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEXHERER (21,985) (84,308)
Loss for the year attributable to: UM RERGRFERSE
— Owners of the Company . YNGIE Z PN (21,750) (84,234)
— Non-controlling interests — R A - -
(21,750) (84.234)
Total comprehensive loss for the year UM REBEAFEREBER
attributable to: M
— Owners of the Company —ARAEAA (21,985) (84,308)
— Non-controlling interests — R - -
(21,985) (84,308)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEAREE(B) 13 (0.84) (324)
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

At 31 December 2022
WZZ-—F+-R=+—H

NOTE 2022 2021
BisE et -3 T F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ER N 14 - 1,453
Investment properties REME 15 - 615
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 - 5562
Goodwill BES 18 - =
Rental deposits Hews - 3415
- [ 1,045
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 19 - 5,248
Trade and other receivables JFE U B 50 e L b LK R IR 20 - 6,878
Finance lease receivables MEH SR FIE 17 - 5,156
Restricted bank balances IR EIRITEER 21 2,863 3455
Bank balances and cash RITHERNIR S 21 430 49 484
3,293 70,221
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE A< AR SR % EL A FE A5 R IE 22 76,271 61813
Borrowings &3k 25 57,641 9313
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 - 27,054
Tax payable eI TR 12 12,255 11951
Contract liabilities BREE 23 - 8,689
Loan from a shareholder MR E 24 184,689 203,682
330,856 322,502
Net current liabilities REEEFE (327,563) (252281)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 - 15,647
Borrowings &3k 25 - 48,695
- 64,342
NET LIABILITIES BEFE (327,563) (305,578)
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M EARR R

At 31 December 2022
RZZ-—F+-A=+—H

NOTE 2022 2021
BisE et -3 T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR AT

Capital and reserves R R #E
Share capital R 26 259,999 259,999
Reserves [ (587,655) (565,670)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARBERAEGLER (327,656) (305,671)
Non-controlling interests JErER s 93 93
NET DEFICIT AL (327,563) (305,578)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 195 were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 August 2024 and signed on its behalf by

Cheung Yuk Ki

Director

FEBEEFINAZHEAUBERREN-F
“HFENANRRERSHERRERT

Wi FIIALTREREE
SRR
EF
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREBR
For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE-F__FT-A=+—HLFRE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAREAFE
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
ERRE FER
kx  ROEE HtRE i ZiER it it st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ARTr  A%Tr A%Tr A%t BT BETn BETr BBt
(Note (3)) ~ (Note (b)) (Note(c))
(M)  (WdEe) (W)
At | January 2021 RZE--5-f-H 259999 165,043 32466 (102137) (576734  (221,363) 93 (221,270)
Loss for the year rEREE# - - - N2k N (VL L N ()
Other comprehensive loss A2 EHE
ltem that may be reclassified LV T Egigy k)
subsequently to profft or loss: EH -
Exchange diffrences arisingon ~~ EBINEBEANEL
translation of foreign =8
operations = = = (74) = (74) - (74)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREERAT
for the year = = = (74) (842349) (84308) = (84.308)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—F+-A=1-H 259999 165,043 32466 (102211)  (660968)  (305671) 93 (305,578)
At | January 2022 WZE--F-f-H 259,999 165,043 32466 (102201)  (660,968)  (305,671) 93 (305,578)
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - (21750 (1,750)) - (21,750)
Other comprehensive loss Rft2EEE
Item that may be reclassified by T T e Y ray ]
subsequently to profit or loss: EA -
Exchange diferences arisngon ~ EGINEIEAMEN
trandlation of foreign =8
operations - - - (235) - (235) - (235)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREFRAR
for the year - - - (235) (21,750) (21,985) - (21,985)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZf+-A=t-H 259,999 165,043 32466 (102446)  (682718)  (327,65) 93 (327,563)
Notes: B eE -
(@)  The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act (@) BRMMEEZEAXERE—NLN\—F(AH
1981. EVFABHRE -
(b)  Other reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies ~ (b) ~ EAEEDIRBEFAEENANB AR ZFHE

adopted for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in its subsidiaries which do not result
in a loss of control as set out in “Basis of consolidation” of note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

() Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of (9

the financial statements of foreign operations.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2022

BE 2 S+ A=+—HIL%E

2022 2021
—EC-CE T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRS
Loss before taxation BRI RIE R (21,750) (84,234)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs A 5,153 6,714
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - WERBETE 286 2,531
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 237 1,475
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,139 14,755
Gain on early termination of leases IRATAR FHE 2 W (18,664)
Charge of loss allowance on financial assets ks EEERE 2,008 8,760
Whrite-off (Reversal of write-down) of inventories 17 & #3H (MUREEEI) 3,711 (1,928)
Provision for the losses on litigations, net FABERE - FHE - 1,548
Losses from impairment REER 6,223 11,832
Exchange differences B ER (567) 10
Operating cash flows before movements in EELESRBHCLERERE
working capital (21,224) (38,537)
Changes in working capital: 2BEGEE)
Inventories 3= 1,537 3,853
Finance lease receivables ARSI - 11,68l
Trade and other receivables FEUS AR TR I EL fth FE W 5RO (186) (2.566)
Restricted bank balances IR EIRI TR 592 242
Trade and other payables FEN BRI R E b (5008 (6,076) (8,469)
Contract liabilities afaE - 152
Cash used in operations and net cash used in EEMAREREETHMA
operating activities ReF8E (25,357) (33,644)
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBHERER

For the year ended 3| December 2022

HE-Z-—F+-A=t-HILFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE BT AR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
(Repayment to) Proceeds from loan from a (BR)RREXRPERE
shareholder 30 (23,697) 82,190
Proceeds from borrowings &R PT1SRIE - 9,313
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE - (17,748)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities METH(FA)MBREFH (23,697) 73,755
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash REREFRESER Z2(RD)
equivalents BnFEE (49,054) 40,111
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHIZBRE&RERELER 49,484 9,427
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEREHTE - (>4)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRBEREREEER -
represented by bank balances and cash BB TEBREERS 430 49,484
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

IDT International Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the "Group”), was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company is located at Unit 612, 6/F, Bank of America Tower, |2 Harcourt
Road, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development, manufacture, sales and marketing of

various electronic products.

On 19 March 2024, the Company received a statutory demand (the “Statutory
Demand”) dated |9 March 2024 from a creditor, demanding the Company to
pay an amount of HK$15,000,000 within 3 weeks from the date of service of the
Statutory Demand, failing which the creditor may present a winding-up petition
against the Company. The management of the Group had been working closely
with professional advisors in formulating a restructuring plan to address the overall

indebtedness of the Company.

On 27 May 2024, the Company has filed an ex parte originating summons with
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the hearing on
|3 September 2024 of an application by the Company for an order to convene
meeting of the creditors of the Company to consider and, if thought fit, approve,
with or without modification, a scheme of arrangement proposed by the Company,

pursuant to section 670 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, the Company
is still in negotiation with the creditors of the Company for the details and terms of

the restructuring plan.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

—RER

EREBEERAR(IARR ] #ERHE
MEARSAB ASE]) DRERES
M BRREBRAR - HROHER
BEHARZAERAR([BRA])ER
Lo RARIFMREREREEL M
BN EBHRERE 25 ERRITH
DGEGIE ©

ARRT—RREER DT - SHBEA
Al EBRB ARG - FE - 588
ERESEEFER -
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RiER = (8 2 B3R 2 %8 ¥ 15,000,000
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
E-R__Ft_ A=+ HLEE

51

2.

90

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. Effective from current
year, all amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand with comparative
figures for prior period's financial information were being restated to the nearest
thousand. Such restatements have no material effect on the reported financial

position, results and cash flows of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent
with the accounting policies adopted in the 2021 consolidated financial statements
except for the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial

statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in

note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the
fact that the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$327,563,000 at 31 December 2022, the Group's total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by approximately HK$327,563,000 as of that date, and that the Group
incurred a loss of approximately HK$21,750,000 for the year then ended. As of
31 December 2022 and up to the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is subjected to a number of legal proceedings and the
Group is yet to settle majority of those outstanding legal proceedings due to lack of
sufficient funds which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
Furthermore, the Group recorded net operating cash outflow of approximately
HK$25,357,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the Group’s bank
balances and cash remaining at a low level of approximately HK$430,000 as of 3|
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic has affected
the Group's operation to the extent that the production of the Group's leased
factory in Shenzhen was suspended with effect from 5 March 2022, the tenancy of
factory was terminated on 31 May 2022 as set out in note |6 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The above events and conditions indicate that the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
and, therefore, that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its

liabilities in the normal course of business.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022

51

2.

i

Ft-A=+-RALFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Going concern (continued)

In view of the above circumstances, the management of the Group has given careful

consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the Group, the available

sources of financing and have considered the Group's cash flow projection that

covered a period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2022 and up

to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements to assess whether

the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the liquidity position and

to improve the Group's financial position which include, but are not limited to the

followings:

the Group has identified potential investor(s) to provide continuous financial
support to the Group as is necessary to enable the Group to meet its day-to-

day operations and its financial obligations as they fall due;

after the transfer of the loan from China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Limited (“Huaneng”) to Party A (as defined and disclosed in
Note 36(b) to the condensed consolidated financial statements), Party A has
undertaken that the repayment of the loan from other creditors to the Group
of approximately HK$ 184,689,000 at 3| December 2022 will be restructured
and any remaining outstanding amount as a result of the restructuring will
not be requested within twelve months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, unless the Group has obtained funding
from other sources and is in a position to meet all repayment obligations at
that time;

the Group is implementing measures to tighten cost controls over various
operating expenses and to identify and secure new business opportunity
in order to enhance its profitability and to improve the cash flow from its

operation in future;
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Going concern (continued)

4. the Group continues to negotiate/seek opportunities with the financial
institutions for the renewal of existing/inception of the new financing
arrangement to meet the Group's working capital and financial requirements

in the future;

5. the Group is negotiating with different creditors to restructure/reach a

settlement plan for the existing liabilities;

6. the Group is actively exploring the availability of alternative source of
financing including but not limited to seeking new investment and business

opportunities to strengthen the capital bases of the Company; and

7. the Group is continuously expanding its product portfolio to meet new
customer demands and enhance the Group’s market competitiveness. In
December 2023, the Group has launched its own online retail platform and

established two online stores on foreign platforms.

Based on the latest information available, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidation financial statements on a

going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainty exists as to whether the
management of the Company will be able to implement the abovementioned plans
and measures. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
will depend upon the Group's ability to implement any liabilities restructuring plan,

obtain adequate extra financing and/or generate sufficient cash flows from operation.

Should the above measures not be able to implement successfully, the Group may
not have sufficient funds to operate as a going concern, in which case, adjustments
might have to be made to the carrying values of the Company's assets to their
recoverable amounts, to reclassify the non-current assets as current assets, and to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise. The effect of these adjustments

have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

3.

94

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid- | 9-Related Rent Concessions Beyond

30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model

Rules

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid- [9-Related Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June
2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider individual lease contracts
to determine whether rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees to account for
such rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. It applies to Covid-
| 9-related rent concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30 June

2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements for proceeds received by
an entity from selling items produced while testing an item of property, plant or
equipment before it is used for its intended purpose. An entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss
and measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of
HKAS 2.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is
onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for
example, an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and

equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022

BE-F--FT-A=+-BILLFR

A/ RETTBRMBREER
ER(&E)

BEREHEAEIRBTE) : FRE
FER 2 RS FIR

HRYE - IRREEE ERERE
AETTA AR ER e EENRR
MEFHEHIR  ZFEINRET
AEASRE - ERNBaRRHEMT
% 5IE A MABIIERZ SRR A
Ko UREAEEGENEIRMNTE
REFEZFRA MK -

RAZE LRETAY A S ERA M
REELTABATE -

BEREHENEIRBTX) : BITE
B R

ZEEINER  REBBGTERF
RAHER N B BEER - BITAHN
RABRESHERBROKRA - B2E
NERBRNRARKEEBITZAH
HOIZE PR (FIINE RS T RAHEL) - A
FEBTANERBRNEMKADE
(PR EEBITAAMAME - BE R
REFABNFERT) °

KBRS LT AL TR HERA RS
BRELFEABAYE -

Annual Report 2022 £ 95



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

3.

96

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
some types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
instead refer to HKAS 37. The exception has been added to avoid an unintended

consequence of updating the reference.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements Project —2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS I: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of HKFRS | for a subsidiary that becomes
a first-time adopter of HKFRSs later than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts
HKFRSs later than its parent and applies HKFRS 1.D16(a), then a subsidiary may
elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at
amounts included in the consolidated financial statements of the parent, based on
the parent's date of transition to HKFRSs.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle (continued)

HKFRS 9: Fees in the “10 per cent” Test for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing the “10 per cent
test” for derecognition of financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net of
fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements. As currently drafted, Example 13 is not clear as to why

such payments are not a lease incentive.

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash flows for taxation when
measuring fair value, thereby aligning the fair value measurement requirements in
HKAS 41 with those in HKFRS 3.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary relief from accounting for
deferred taxes arising from the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development's Pillar Two model rules. The Amendments also introduce targeted
disclosure requirements to help investors understand an entity’s exposure to income

taxes arising from the rules.
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3.  APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

(continued)

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA

has issued the following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the

current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS |
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12
HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS |
Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HK
Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
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Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities ansing from a
Single Transaction'

Insurance Contracts'

Inttial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback!

Lack of Exchangeabilty’

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments*

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Assodiate or Joint Venture®
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs (continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2025
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2026
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2027

¢ The effective date to be determined
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/
revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the results and

financial position of the Group.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is historical cost.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

S has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returmns from its involvement with the
investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control listed above.

In the Company's statement of financial position as set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment loss. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis

of dividends received and receivable.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other members of the

Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders to

a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the

Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest determined at
the date when control is lost and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the date
when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis
as would be required if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed
by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint

venture or others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an

operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

groups of cash-generating units).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by lessee, to ean rental income.
Investment properties include leased properties which are being recognised as right-
of-use assets upon application of HKFRS [6 and sub-leased by the Group under

operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives and after

taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

If an investment property becomes a right-of-use asset because its use has changed as
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation, the carrying amount of the

property at the date of transfer is transferred to the right-of-use asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-
of-use asset upon application of HKFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as an
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss

in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred. Costs incurred on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, are capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to
complete the development. The expenditure capitalised will be the outsourcing
costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as an expense as
incurred. When the asset is available for use, the capitalised development costs are

amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables without a significant financing component arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 5.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

S the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect

contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income (the “FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved

by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income (the “OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments

that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-

term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for

financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income (continued)

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting

period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, finance lease receivables and bank balances and cash). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (*I2m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within |2 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets is assessed collectively using a

provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default

occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.

In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing

whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial

instrument's external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a

significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For interal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

0 it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or

loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
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4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where

evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the

financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and other
receivables are each assessed as a separate group);
0 past-due status;

. nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. extemnal credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income s calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either

financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets

of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group

entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, borrowings and loan from

a shareholder are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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116

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and, if applicable,
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash equivalents
represent short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value, net of bank overdrafts (if any).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the

particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially

the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation

if one of the following criteria is met:

S the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by

the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

S the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the distinct good or service.

The Group recognised revenue at a point in time when the control of the goods is

transferred.

A contract liability represents the Group'’s obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the contract is presented
as a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service to
the customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right
to consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of

unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the business of Group, it is common for the Group to receive from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before the services are
completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until it is recognised
as revenue. During that period, any significant financing components, if applicable,
will be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless the

interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On all other partial disposals, which includes partial disposal of associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange differences

recognised in the separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting

period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which
comprises all costs of purchase and, where applicable, cost of conversion and other
costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

0 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level [, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

0 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated individually,
or when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units

for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets

of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment loss for goodwill is stated in

the accounting policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on the temporary
investment of the specific borrowings, that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing

costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Expenditures for which
a provision has been recognised are charged against the related provision in the
period in which the expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the amount provided is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where
the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as

a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities

unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that
it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal

annual instalments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of
the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value
asset leases. Lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease
components, and accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease
separately. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component

and, where applicable, the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate component are
considered to be part of the total consideration that is allocated to the separately

identified components of the contract.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement

date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises:

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any

lease incentives received;

(c)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d)  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If a property held by the Group as a right-of-use asset and occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property. The accounting
policy for investment properties is stated in the earlier part of this note. The Group
presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property as
a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets that meet the definition of investment property is presented within “Investment

properties”.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that

are not paid at the commencement date of the contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term

that are not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c)  amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d)  exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise that option; and

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or

where it is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect

the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there are
changes to the lease payments arising from a change in the lease term or the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase, extension or termination option.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when there is
a change in the residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or
the future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other than
floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using a

revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease
liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit

or |oss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective

date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract on the basis

of relative stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified contract.

(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease

payments using a revised discount rate over the revised lease term.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

(d)  for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial

or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts for the remeasurement
of the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use

asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient provided in Amendments to HKFRS
| 6: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions, which has been early adopted by the
Group since the year ended 31 December 2021, and does not assess whether
eligible rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic are lease modification. The Group accounts for any change in lease
payments resulting from the rent concession the same way it would account for the

change applying HKFRS 16 if the change were not a lease modification.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct

consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions

are met:

(@)  the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b)  any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022; and

(c)  thereis no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient consistently to all eligible rent

concessions with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance lease or an operating lease
at the inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and
sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as an operating lease if
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group has applied the recognition
exemption. Otherwise, the sublease is classified as a finance lease or an operating

lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease
separately from non-lease components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone

price basis.

As lessor — finance lease

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. The Group applies
the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the net investment

in the finance lease.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor (continued)

As lessor — finance lease (continued)

The Group accounts for a modification to a finance lease as a separate lease if both:

(@)  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use
one or more underlying assets; and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a modification to a finance lease that is not accounted for as a separate lease,

the Group accounts for the modification as follows:
(a) if the lease would have been classified as an operating lease had the
modification been in effect at the inception date, the Group:
(i) accounts for the lease modification as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification; and
(i) measures the carrying amount of the underlying asset as the net
investment in the lease immediately before the effective date of the

lease modification.

(b)  otherwise, the Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 9.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor (continued)

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to

the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new

lease.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefits scheme (together referred
to the “Retirement Schemes”) are recognised as expenses when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of

voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit
differs from loss before taxation as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iify is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of the

holding company of the Group.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R

4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(il

)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each holding company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the holding

company of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person's spouse or domestic partner; and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate

and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
consolidated financial statements are reported in a manner consistent with the
intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The
Company's executive directors and the chief executive officer, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of, the Group's various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4
to the consolidated financial statements, the management of the Group is required
to make various estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experiences, and other factors that

are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and key sources of
estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial reporting period.

Going concern basis

As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The
appropriateness of the going concemn basis is assessed after taking into consideration
all relevant available information about the future of the Group, including the
outcomes of the Group's plans and measures (including any liabilities restructuring
plan), the cash flow forecasts of the Group and financial support from potential
investor(s). Such measures inherently involve uncertainties. The future outcome
of aforesaid events and conditions could differ significantly and hence render the

adoption of the going concem basis inappropriate.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-

use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets at the end of
the reporting period. Assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or assets group exceeds its recoverable amount, which is

the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use.

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the ageing and conditions of the inventories
at the end of the reporting period and assess the adequacy of the impairment
provision for those inventories which are obsolete or/and slow-moving identified
as no longer suitable for use in production nor saleable in the market as a result
of change in the market conditions and technology. Estimation of net realisable
value of inventory involves judgement on the conditions and usefulness of items of
inventories. Where the expectation on the net realisable value is lower than the

cost for certain items, a write-off or write-down of inventories may arise.

Loss allowance for ECL on trade receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The
amount of the loss allowance based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. In addition, trade receivables

with credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group principally engages in the design, development, manufacture, sales and

marketing of various electronic products.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the executive directors and chief executive officer, being the CODM, in order to

allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.

The Group previously reported its revenue and results by four reportable operating
segments: (1) Smart learning and immersive technology; (2) Connected home
and communications; (3) Health and wellness; and (4) Others (mainly including
other electronic products). During the year ended 31 December 2022, due to
the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the suspension of operations of the PRC factory, the Group's CODM
then assesses the performance of the Group's business and allocates the resource
for its operations as a whole. Accordingly, no operating segment revenue and resuft
are presented. Comparative information has been recast to conform to the current

year's presentation.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as such amounts are
not reviewed by the Group’s CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the Group's CODM.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Sales of goods (revenue recognised at a point in time)

The Group sells various electronic products to corporate customers. Revenue
represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to
outside corporate customers, net of sales related taxes. Revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the customer's specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term for customers is normally

up to 45 days upon delivery or payment in advance is normally required.

During the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021, all performance obligations
for sales of goods are for period of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as at the end

of the reporting period is not disclosed.

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from contracts with customers is at

a point in time during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WHERDHERE)

Geographical information HEER

The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas ARBZEBURTE AR - BOMEEM
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The Group carries (FEENBARBERT EM) - AEE
out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group REBRFEETRERETESE
also operates marketing offices in Europe, Americas and other Asia Pacific countries. %o AEBMERM - EMEEMEA

RERZAMSHEERSR

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based BRAAEERBINARTPHEHIERTY
on the location of customers are detailed below: BRERXFPMEHLZS] - FENT :
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
The PRC (country of domicile) B (EER) 2218 650
Asia Pacific (excluding the PRC) ERE(TBEFEFE) - 5,567
Americas el - 6,546
Europe BUM - 3,630
Others Hi - 751
2,218 17,144
At 31 December 2021, approximately 95% of the Group's non-current assets are R-ZZBE-Z—F+ZA=+—8H "' K&
located in the PRC. The Group reported no significant non-current assets at 3| EA95%IERBEEMNFE - RZF
December 2022. ZZHEFZA=T+—H  AEEVER
HEAFRBEE °
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e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. WHERDHERE)
Information about major customers TERFER
Revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is AAEEERB BB RS BE 2
as follows: Fay (N
2022 2021
—E-CE —ET-—F
% %
Customer “A” ZEIA] - 10
Customer “B” EP[B] - 21
Customer “C" EPIC] - I3
Customer "D” EF[D] - [
Customer “E" =P[E] 100 5
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the total revenue of & REBEERRREGENEE KGR
the Group during the respective year. B 10%3 A L -
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES, NET 7. HttWARHMEE  F8E
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other income Hpg A
Interest income A BUA 3 13
Finance income on the net investment in finance MEREREFEBERA
leases - 1,655
Gain on early termination of the leases AR EHE 2 es 18,664 =

Income from subleasing of right-of-use assets which X &Y% CLHERBYWEBT
categorised under investment properties/rented DR AEEENHERA

premises under operating leases - 1,880
Sales of scraps THE R - 1,592
Subsidy income LN 58 566
Others Hith 48 868

18,773 6,574
Other gains (losses), net Htezs (&518) - F8
Exchange (loss) gain, net B X (B4R Weas - JFE (567) 944
Provision for the losses on litigations, net (note 32)  FFFARSIEREME « JFRB(FI3E32) - (1,548)
(567) (604)
CHARGE OF LOSS ALLOWANCE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 8. HEEMEEBERE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AR
Charge of loss allowance MNREEERE
— on trade and other receivables — FEARER SR S H A FE Wk IE 2,008 137
— on finance lease receivables —BEREREKFUE - 8,623
2,008 8,760
Details of loss allowance on trade and other receivables and finance lease EBRBE_T_—_FR-_T_—F+=
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 29 A=+—RIEFE R R E AR
to the consolidated financial statements. FIELA K A E M B WG R B R R

ZFEERE A EMRMFED -
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

51

9.

2T F+-A=1+-HIEFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging (crediting):

9. KRBAIER

AR GEA) THIREZT -

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BBT T BB

Finance costs ME M
Interest on borrowings BT & 3,682 2,865
Interest on lease liabilities MERENR 1,471 3,848
5,153 6,713

Staff costs BIRA
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EE Rl EA) 350 350

Retirement benefits scheme contributions for Hh 8 TRAEM SR ()

other staff (note) 2,365 9,435
Severance and other termination costs EMERAMENER 5733 =
Salaries and other benefits for other staff HMET 2 TEREAMER 6,426 52,497
Total staff costs* B Ik igE 14,874 62,282
Losses from impairment WEEE
Loss from impairment of advances to suppliers TR R IE 2R EEE (H5E20)

(note 20) 1,634 1,950
Loss from impairment of other taxes recoverable  E-fth AT Ut [E1 518 2 R (B &5 18 (Fi7E20)

(note 20) 3,422 _
Loss from impairment of property, plant and W - WERSE 2 REERE(HEE4)

equipment (note [4) [,167 -
Loss from impairment of investment properties KEME 2 REBEMEES)

(note 15) - 983
Loss from impairment of right-of-use assets FRELE ZREBE(HE6)

(note 16) - 8,899

Total losses from impairment REEBEE 6,223 11,832
Auditor’s remuneration ZERTE &
— Audit services — &R 1,250 1,200
— Non-audit services —JEB AT IR - 200
Cost of inventories FERA 5,248 15,286
Write-off (Reversal of write-down) of inventories 77 & #fliH (MO Z E) (Gt A FEKA])

(included in “Cost of inventories”) 3,711 (1,928)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (included in ERAREENEGIAI—RITHRAX])

“General administrative expenses’) 2,139 14,755
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment* ME - ERREITE 286 2,531
Depreciation of investment properties (included in R EMEFE (FTAl —RITEFAX])

“General administrative expenses’) 237 [ 475
Rental expenses recognised under short-term leases 1RIEEHIAERR < HEFAX

(included in "General administrative expenses’) GTAI—RITHRX]) 1,527 =

& BT —4F+_A=t+—HL#F
B EHcBEEERNBEHNRIR
[1FE Bz ETRARDE - #
BRHEE(WER) -

& During the year ended 31 December 2021, the amounts include staff costs and
depreciation of property, plant and equipment charged to profit or loss and capitalised
in “Inventories”, as appropriate.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 9. KRBAEERE)
Note: For the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no forfeited B BE-—E-——ER-—E-—%F+-f
;Zz::but\ons available to reduce its contribution to the Retirement Schemes in future =t oALEE  AERLEDRK
SRR B DR AR SR AF 2 2 SR AR 2
e -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 10. EERFEITHAEME
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ E=He
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and receivable by the KNAREERWSER SR
directors of the Company are as follows: BT
Year ended 3| December 2022 BE-E-_-H+=-H=+—H
fI:3: 4
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
BINEA
e HERER T B R
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETRT
Executive director: HITEFE :
Mr. Zhu Yongning (note |) RAKBREHEE) - - - -
Non-executive director: HPTEE -
Mr. Cui Xiao EREL - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: G FEHTTEE -
Mr. Xu finwen REBEAE 150 = = 150
Mr. Zhou Meilin (note 2) RS (P EE2) 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhou Rui (note 2) [EI8 55 4 (PifE2) 100 - - 100
350 - - 350
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HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 0. EBRFETHRAEMEE)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EBSME(E)
Year ended 3| December 202 | HE—_ZEZ-—F+-HA=+—H
HEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme

Fees allowances  contributions Total
BB

wE  FelEH AT IR it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

Executive director: HITEE :

Mr. Zhu Yongning (note 1) RokE A (M) = - - -
Non-executive director: HHTEE -

Mr. Cui Xiao ERLE - = = -

Independent non-executive directors: B FEHTTEE -

Mr. Xu finwen REBEAE 150 — - 150
Mr. Zhou Meilin (note 2) RIS (B EE2) 100 = = 100
Mr. Zhou Rui (note 2) [EI8 55 A (PiE2) 100 = = 100

350 - - 350
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0. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:
Mr. Zhu Yongning resigned as an executive director of the Company on |
February 2024.

2. Mr. Zhou Meilin and Mr. Zhou Rui resigned as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on | February 2024.

3. Ms. Cheung Yuk Ki was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on | February 2024.

4. Ms. Ng Kwok Ying Isabella and Mr. Chen Tiger Charles were appointed as

non-executive directors of the Company on | February 2024.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors shown above were for their services as directors of the

Company.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors of

the Company that were entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021,

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

0. EERFETHAEME(E)

@)

E=ME(E)

Bt :

RKBEEN-_Z_ME_A
—BEHIARRMTES -

2 BAEMEEREHEENR-F
“HFE-A-RBERREE
IFRITES -

3. REHZTHN T _NF_A
—HEZEBARANITE
%o

4, R Bl B &+ K Chen Tiger
Charles R AR —F —MF_ 7
—HEZERARARIENITE
Fo

FRTEERBUFNITES L
e BRREERARAESR
REMNREMS -

NEEAZBAZEN BOE
REEMER S

BE_T-_—_FR-ZT=—F
TZA=+T—HLEFEBET
KFETRAARNRAEST AT
AZEF - BUEFREMR S -
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HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

0.

150

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10.

(c)  Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that

no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to

the Company's business to which the Company was a party and in which

a director of the Company, or connected entity of the directors of the

Company, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 or at any time
during the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

No director is included in the aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals during the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021.

The emoluments of the five (2021: five) highest paid non-director individuals are as

follows:

EERTETBRAEME(E)

© EBRRS RERGHZEKX
Bk

mERE  KDRAIEERE B
EECFRITF4Z
A=+ BLEFEFRINEBZE
ZECERZFE-—F+ZA
S+—BLEFEAARRHE - #BE
FEAANBBALRREBZR
5 THRERAEH  TIHRAR
RABEARREE(IANAES
JEBEER)ERAEEREEEX
Filzs -

hEREHMAL

BE—_T-_—_FKR-_FT-_—%+=A
=+—HLFE  BEEEHALER
SEHMA LS @5 -

BE(ZE-—F: AR)FEERSH
MALzBEmT :

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Salaries and allowances 4 RiEEL 1,409 2713
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIKEFFTEIH R 331 290
1,740 3,003
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) M.

The emoluments of the five (2021: five) highest paid non-director individuals are

within the following bands:

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

hEREHMALE)
BE(ZE-—F: AR)FEERSH
MALZBENFIATIRE :

Number of individuals

EEHE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HKS$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 IS 7T 2B 1 000,0007T 5 5

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. There was no arrangement under which a director or
the five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021.

BHE-_Z-_—_FR-_FT-—F+_-A
=+—HIEFE  AEEHESE
N TARRESHEEERTMA
THERBEMAREESIMAR ZHE
FEERAES BIREFTIAERES
FMATHE-_T-_—_FR-T-_—F
TZA=T—BLEEREXKRENE
A€ 2 25
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HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

2.

152

TAXATION

No provision for income tax has been made as the Group entitles either had no
estimated assessable profits or incurred tax losses for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as follows:

BiE
HRAEBRBEE_S-_—_FK=-_F

“Ft A=t HIEFEYEGE
FERBOR M RELHIERE - BRI EIE
TS BARL -

AR [E I8 2 ERRR T A 2 B IR AR AN
T~

2022 2021
—B-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AR
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (21,750) (84,234)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IR FT1EH & | 6.5%:1 EHFHIBR S (3,589) (13,898)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI 2 B E
tax purpose 1,363 1,902
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  BEMBUAZ TRIAR £ (4,651) (392)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRATBBR AT E 8,199 13,198
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating P ELfth R1AME [ 48 & Il B2 RIFTER A
in other jurisdictions MENER & (1,955) (3.046)
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised ~ REERERERB L HIBTE 633 2293
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B R 4t Bl R ERER T BB 18 - (57)
Tax charge for the year AEEHREX L - -
Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. On REBTMN L BREZREENG

21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.
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TAXATION (continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$591,093,000 (2021: approximately HK$556,755,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. Included in the unrecognised tax losses were losses
of approximately HK$190,692,000 (2021: approximately HK$170,855,000) that will
expire in the years of 2023 to 2027 (2021: years of 2022 to 2026). Other losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

The Group also has certain deductible temporary differences mainly related to
loss from impairment of other receivables and property, plant and equipment, loss
allowance on trade receivables and write-down of inventories (2021: loss from
impairment of other receivables, loss allowance on trade receivables and finance
lease receivables and write-down of inventories) amounted to approximately
HK$95,229,000 and available for offset against future profits at 31 December 2022
(2021: approximately HK$91,624,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilised.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

BE(E)

REB(PEARKEMBECEMERE)
([EMBBRE) REEMBIEEH
&l - BB RARMEFE 2 FiE
¥ 7525% °

H i AR RE 2 BOA R A B AR
BRI 2 BEHY -

RBEBR - REBB B ABAHIEES
1B 4975 #591,093000T (Z B - —4

#) 78 ¥ 556,755,0007T ) AT (£ 4K 85 B &8 %
Mo mREE—E-_—GER-_FT-—F

T A=+ —HIEFEETERIR R
MR Y ERZSEREARLTHE

BE - RERAVBEBEBEAN -
TR L UM BEL
A 1190692000 (ZE=—F : HR
R T RNFHMNEBZE
BB 170,8550007T) © H A EE A
EIR G o

RZE-_—_F+-A=+—8 K&
BrEAEE TAMREREZELE
#95229000L(Z T = —F : fBK
91,624,0007T) + & 2 B E {th & WU FRIE LA
K% HERFHIREBE &
WEEREERERFEMREHR(=Z
T HRUGRIERESE - B
RREBERSRYGEEBRERT
EWW>'ﬂﬂ%mE%H&ﬁﬂom
RN A AT BE 78 FEER Tt a2 A1) ] PR DASK 85 A]
RERZRE - (RN BB HRE
REBRRELENIBEE -
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

2.

154

TAXATION (continued)

Exposures arising from income tax liabilities

Oregon Scientific Italy Limited (“OS ltaly”)

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, OS ltaly, was involved in
a tax dispute with the Italian Tax Authorities. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 6 November 2018, there was a tax dispute between OS
Italy and the ltalian Tax Authorities (“Tax Dispute”), and the tax charge judgement
in relation to the Tax Dispute from the Supreme Court of Cassation of Italy was
received. After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company
considered no further legal actions are possible for OS ltaly in relation to the Tax
Dispute. Based on tax notice received from the Italian Tax Authorities in January
2019, the Group provided a tax provision of approximately Euro (“EUR") 1.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$12.3 million) in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2018. OS Italy was declared bankrupt by the court in July 2019 and a
bankruptcy trustee was appointed to in charge of OS lItaly’s bankruptcy procedure.
After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company
considered that OS ltaly was still under bankruptcy procedures and the related tax
liabilities had not yet been fully discharged. Accordingly, the Group continued to
recognise the aforesaid tax provision of approximately EURI,466,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,255,000) as tax payable at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately EURI.367,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,951,000)). In
July 2024, the court has ordered the closure of the bankruptcy procedures and the

related tax liabilities has been discharged, as such the tax provision will be reversed.
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TAXATION (continued)

Exposures arising from income tax liabilities (continued)

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda (“OS Brazil”)

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, OS Brazil, was involved in
a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic of Brazil, which
may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest of approximately
Brazilian Real 3,980,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,869,000) (2021:
approximately Brazilian Real 3,856,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,292,000)).
After considering the available independent legal advice and the current situation,
the directors of the Company believe that the outcome and the amount of final
payment, if any, are uncertain but the expected value of liability is insignificant to
the Group. Therefore, no provision has been made in the consolidated financial

statements.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company for both years is based on the following data:

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE_T-_—F+-A=+-HIFE

BE(E)
FERaEEENER(E)

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda(/ OS Brazil /)

KA BINEE 2 EH B 2R R)OS Brazif
BB EMBEEREMNEEF B
B REBAMEERR(BESE
KA 8443980000 A E i (HE
RE 58690007 ) (ZFEZ—F : 4
38560008 FAE LR (MHERLN B
5292,0007T)) - EERBR BB ILEEE
ARERIMRE ARREZRALE
REBRNFEEE )L THET TR
HEEARHASEMS T REX ° Eit
WENERE SRR HERE

SRER
RIESF AR TS AR SREA
ERETIBE

2022 2021
—E-C=H —E—F
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ARG ESRERNER 2 ARF
Company for the purpose of basic loss per share  #EB ARG 2 RNEEE51E
(HK$'000) (F¥%TT) (21,750) (84,234)
Number of ordinary shares: EEL R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FALAGTESREAREE 2 L@
the purposes of basic loss per share IEF 2 2,599,993,088 2,599,.993,088

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there was no potential

ordinary share in issue for both years.

SRBEFEREREABEER  H
BWEE SRR BB E R -
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BEERRE
Furniture
fixture and Motor Plant and
equipment vehicles machinery Total
& H£B
RRE AE HEREW HEg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
COST %N
At | January 2021, RZZE-_—%—H—B8"
31 December 2021 and — T —#F+-fA=+—H
31 December 2022 T —F
+=-—A=+—H 256,300 2,100 258,984 517,384
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitifE R FEEE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2021 R-—ZB-—%—A—H 254,200 2,100 257,100 513,400
Charged for the year REFHE 800 — 1,731 2,531
At 31 December 2021 R—E-—&+=-H=+—H 255,000 2,100 258,831 515931
Charged for the year ANEE R 133 = 153 286
Impairment loss AEER [,167 = = 167
At 3| December 2022 W-—ZE-=—#+=-H=+—-H 256,300 2,100 258,984 517,384
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 3| December 2022 R-BE-_—%+=-B=+-—H = = - =
At 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—F+-_RA=+—H 1,300 = 153 | 453
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write-off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Fumiture, fixture and equipment 1096-25%
Motor vehicles 109%-20%
Plant and machinery 1096-33%

During the vear ended 3| December 2021, as a result of the unsatisfactory
performance of the Group, the management of the Group due to unprecedent
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the management of the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets. The management of the Group performed
an impairment assessment by using the fair value less cost of disposal model
and compared the carrying amount of the assets to determine the amount of
impairment which should be recognised for the year.

For property, plant and equipment, the fair value less costs of disposal was
determined by the management of the Group using the depreciated replacement
cost approach and/or market comparable approach, as appropriate. The
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. If no
second hand prices are available, the fair value less costs to disposal is determined
using depreciated replacement cost approach that requires an estimation of new
replacement cost of the assets from which deductions are then made to allow for
physical deterioration and all forms of obsolescence and optimisation. Based on the
results of the impairment assessment, the management of the Group concluded
that the recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment were higher
than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment was required for the year
ended 3| December 2021.

For investment properties and right-of-use assets, the determination of the fair
value less costs of disposal was based on income capitalisation approach which
involves estimations and assumptions in determining rental income derived from
market participant's perspective with appropriate capitalisation rate. Based on the
results of the impairment assessment, the management of the Group concluded
that the recoverable amounts of the investment properties and right-of-use assets
were lower than their carrying amounts and it led to the recognition of impairment
losses of approximately HK$983,000 on investment properties (note |5) and
approximately HK$8,899,000 on right-of-use assets (note |6) for the year ended 3|
December 2021, respectively.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

M - HEERREE)

WE - WERREHNERE - Zibat
A RFRERISEERNE - A
WA - BEZFTERMT -

B~ HE MR 10%-25%
HE 109%-20%
i SN & 10%-33%

HE2E-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HItF
& ARCOVID-19RBEMERIzEE
BAEEMBKRAXE  A5EEERE
Y WRNEE  REDERER
BEEZ MBI SEETR - AEE
B EEA QAR SR ANER ST
B - WEEEREEEITHER -
NETRNAFERANNESE -

YR - EERREMES - 2 FERS
ERFHAREEEERANEEEN
RER/ TS L BE(RTER)E
E - BEAFERGERATIRERAS
HRUBEEETATRRORNBEER
SZAERBERABETE - Rk
EEMEE CREKAN - ML EEEE
A ER - A ER L SR A TR
RTEEERAZMET * ZhE®HE
ATARMBEECEERAS - BRPIELH
B AT RE(CRAAARNRE RE
£ - REBEFEER  AKEEEE
BhERAR BE_T-_—F+_A4
=+—BLFE - 9% #ERREZ
AREEREAREERS - Rk BA
FERIME -

HREMERFERREENS * NAA
BREAMC L RBTMS2EEEEN
AL WA - AFEREERATIRE
WABRILEERE S RAETRR
R ENBETEZER  AEEERE
BEH&HmAA BE-_Z-_—F1+=
A=+—HILFE  REMERFERE
BEZAWNESBENEREE  HE
BIRE W (3T 15) R i FAREE & (it
T 16) BB EE 1 7 Bl 4075 #983,000
TC K 475 %:8,899,0007T °
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e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE-Z-—F+-A=t-HIFE

14.

158

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14, Y03 WERREE)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a continuous BE_Z__F+_A=+—BL#F
loss in the operation of the Group. The management of the Group assessed the B AEBGRSASERLERFESSE -
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment was minimal due to ARASER T F L¥FEEE
suspension of the operations and the termination of leases of the Group's factory BRXIEAEAREBE MNP BRI
and office spaces in the PRC during the first half of year 2022 and it led to the EMAEER  URAEEERET
recognition of impairment loss of approximately HK$ 1,167,000, CEAERR: S E L Ek ==
TRE - WHALERREBBHEE
,167,0007T °
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES I5. REWE
Leased
properties
G U
HK$'000
BET T
COST B
At | January 2021, 31 December 2021 and | January 2022 WZZE-_—4%—A—H —Z-_—%&
tZR=+—BRZZ-_—%—-A—H 3,196
Early termination of lease (note 16) RATRIEFAE (BT 16) (3,196)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_Z_H+-A=+-H -
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND REHMBERBESR
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2021 R-ZZE-_—%—H—H 123
Charged for the year REEEHE 1,475
Impairment loss (note 14) BEER (P 14) 983
At 31 December 202 | RZZE-—F+-A=+—H 2,58
Charged for the year REFER 237
Early termination of the leases (note 16) AR EHE (PR 16) (2818)
At 3| December 2022 R-—B-_—_F+-H=+—H _
NET CARRYING AMOUNT SREFE
At 31 December 2022 R-—E-——&+=-HA=+—H =
At 31 December 202 | R—ZF_—f+-A=t—H 615
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 31 December 2022 R=-B_—§+-A=t—H -
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=—F+=-A=+—H 700
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Leasing arrangement — as lessee

The Group's investment properties were leased properties in relation to operating

lease used for sub-leasing purpose and the initial lease terms were two years.

The management of the Group is of the view that the Group's investment
properties, which was only included leased properties under operating lease
with sub-leasing purpose. By using the cost model would provide more relevant

information about the Group's financial position and performance.

At 31 December 2021, the management of the Group assessed the fair value is
under level 3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined under HKFRS 3
which is estimated using income capitalisation approach by capitalising the rental
income derived from the existing tenancies over the existing lease term at an

appropriate capitalisation rate.

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

The investment properties were leased to a number of tenants for a fixed period
of up to two years, in which the lease term is cancellable (without compensation)
with notice periods of one to two months by the tenants with fixed monthly rental
charges and the tenants also bear the management fees. The details of the lease
income from operating leases are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received from the

leasing of investment properties.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

REWRE)
HEZH - EREEA

AEENRENEREERERRSH
REnBEEYR  EXAESAME

AEBEEERA  ARENRENFE
EaELEEER MELHARNES
W - BBEARAERN - ARAKE
R R RRIR I E Z AR -

—E—

—E_—5+ZA=+—8 " r5H
BENE T ATE - HRBEUER
SERE I3RAET C AP E=BRET
PRRE= ZLTFERRBRAER
LA - BRAEBORBRERHAA
EENHERAREEENMERERE

K o

%ME%

HEZH - FRHEA

REMENETRBLATFETRS
SRAME BRPAR—ZMEANE
HEAAREEAE A (EE) - WKERETE A
M- BHPTAREERE - RELEH
EMHERAFBERINGRE M EEmE
BEE7

TRABREYMEHEHKEUZ KRR
HEMRNZ DN :

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT AT

Within | year | F A - 700
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e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

6.

160

LEASES l6. #HE
The Group as lessee FEBHEREHEA
Right-of-use assets RAREE
Buildings
BF
HK$'000
AR
Reconciliation of carrying amount — year ended REHEHERE-BZE_FT=_—F
3| December 2021 tZA=1t—-HLEE
At | January 2021 R—_ZE-——F—H—H 29216
Depreciation e (14,755)
Impairment loss (note 14) REERE (I 14) (8,899)
At 31 December 202 | R_B_—f+-H=t—H 5562
Reconciliation of carrying amount — year ended EHESR-BE2-_S-—F
31 December 2022 t-RA=1+—-HLHFE
At | January 2022 W—ZE-_—F—H—H 5,562
Depreciation e (2,139)
Early termination of the leases BRI IETHE (3,423)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-——#+=-F=+-—H _
Buildings
BRF
HK$'000
BEFT
At 3| December 202| R-B=-—-%+-HA=+-—H
Cost BZN 31,735
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses R E RRERE (26,173)
Net carrying amount AREFE 5,562

At 3| December 2022

W-B-=F+-A=+-A

Cost PR -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses EEMEXAEERS -
Net carrying amount AREDFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

LEASES (continued) HE(E)
The Group as lessee (continued) AEBEREBAE)
Lease liabilities HEER
2022 2021
—E-CE —ET-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current portion BIERER - 27,054
Non-current portion FEENEAER - 15,647
- 42,701

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group leased various office and
factory premises for its daily operations and the initial lease terms were two years.

During the year ended 3| December 2022, given that the Group had not made any
lease payments to the landlord since August 2021 which then the Group received
several notices from the district court in the PRC (the "PRC District Court”) stating
that the landlord of factory has initiated legal action against several subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of rental
fees. Following with the judgement issued by the PRC District Court, the Group
and landlord then entered into an agreement on early termination of the leases
of factory and office spaces on 3| May 2022 with (i) forfeiting the rental deposit
of approximately RMB3,079,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,473,000) by
the Group, (ii) further settlement to the landlord by the Group of approximately
RMBI1,593,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$13,078,000) payable within |5
days of agreement and (iii) the landlord agreed to take up those rental income
receivables up to 31 May 2022, which is recorded as “Finance lease receivables” and
“Investment properties”, under the sub-leasing arrangement of the Group's right-of-
use assets. Based on the above, the recognition of the gain on early termination of
the leases on investment properties, finance lease receivables and right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$378,000, approximately HK$5,156,000 and approximately
HK$3,423,000, respectively, in profit or loss. Accordingly, the final judgement issued
by the PRC District Court to dismiss the appeals and affirmed the original judgement
on 31 January 2024.

HE_ T F+_A=1+—HILHF
B AEEBAEAELEARETHA
ERIMYE s AHAERE -

HE-_T-_F+-_A=+—HItF
B ENAEEE-_T-_—F/\AX
CREFINAERNEENR  A&E
HEBER B 5 AR ([ B A =
B BHZHBEM  BEIREEESH
UAREEETHEKNEARRERF
A BREREAS 2 HBAN LSRN
R o B 5 AR e AR E -
REBHEFEHEN T -_—FFHA
=+ — Bl AR ATAR LE T e i
RNEEHBE  mMOAEERERS TR
£ 4 AR 30790007 (B8 R4 76
34730007C) : (NVAKEMEETE—F
RN AR 115930007 (AEE R4
#13,0780007T) * FEMEMK Wi 158
A R(iNVEERBEREAEEF
AEEENYEREEREZEHS WA
WZE BEE-_E-—FHA=1—
HiF  ZE5REFEEA MERE
FEMGRIE I R [REME] - R XA
i RARIEREYEEES BEHE
FEWRIB R fF B E 2 W Rl 48
# 37800070 + #97% % 5,156,000 7T K& 4
H13,4230007T © BN IERATER - B
it B A ERR S - WFE—A
=+ —BEHREHARE E5F - Wi
R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

6. LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The total cash outflow for leases was approximately HK$573,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately HK$17,748,000).

At 31 December 2021, the weighted average effective interest rate for the lease
liabilities of the Group was 9.0% per annum.

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2022 and 2021

The Group had no significant commitment for short-term leases.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements as the lessor for certain of its right-of-use assets, which have a lease
term of two years. The leases do not include purchase, extension or termination
options.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional
currency of the group entities involved in the lease arrangements.

Below is a maturity analysis of lease payments receivable and the reconciliation of
undiscounted lease payments to the present value of minimum lease payments.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE_T-_—F+-A=+-HIFE

BMEHERWIER

REBE-Z-—F+-A=1+—HItF
B AEBEANBASREETERE
BEIVUREHRERY  HEHAW
F-HETBERE BHRILER
e

ARMEEEHAARBE(TARE]
BRHERCEEERNINEEY)
AHE - BAREYERBEZHMER
SRR o

TRARKEENRO B RO RRE
AHENRESKERENKRELY
g o

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Finance lease receivables comprises: BEHEERTEESE
Within | year IR - 13,336
More than | year but within 2 years BB FERER - 1,263
Gross investment in the lease (note) ME R E BB () - 14,599
Less: Unearned finance income W REREELE WA - (820)
Present value of minimum lease payments RERENFTRE - 13,779
Less: Loss allowance (note 29) B EE R (MEE29) - (8,623)
- 5156
Current portion ENEIER - 5,156

Note: The gross investment in the lease represents the total undiscounted lease payments
to be received by the Group under the finance lease arrangements. There was no
unguaranteed residual accruing to the Group.

it BEZRERBRAKERERE
ME R R R B E ([ 508
B8 o AEEY BRERERAE -

Annual Report 2022 £3f 163



IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BB AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

17.

164

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. MEHRERKFEE)
At 31 December 2021, the finance lease receivables are not past due and the RZE-_—F+-A=+—H " B&EH
weighted average effective interest rate contracted was 8.2% per annum. ERWFIAY BB R AT E
BREFHIZR 58.2% °
Details of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for the year ended 31 BE_Z_—F+_A=+—HILLFE
December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. ZREMERKRIE R EN LB
RER R M HRAM 29
GOODWILL 18. PHE
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B TIT
CosT B
At | January and 3| December R—H—BE+-A=+—H 33,800 33,800
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RETREEER
At | January and 31 December R—H—BE+-A=+—H 33,800 33,800
NET CARRYING AMOUNT SREFE
At 31 December K+=—A=+—~H - =

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of business in prior years were allocated to

two individual cash generating units (“CGUs"), comprising the health and wellness

operation and the connected home and communications operation.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, having considered that some products

had been loss-making and the relevant operations were either terminated during

the year or planned to be terminated in the foreseeable future, the directors of

the Company had consequently performed an impairment review for these CGUs

and the recoverable amounts were determined from a value in use calculation. As

a result of the impairment tests, the director of the Company concluded that the

goodwill had been fully impaired.
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IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

INVENTORIES 9. F&
2022 2021
—E-CF —EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Raw materials JRE} - 4,295
Work in progress E&m - 247
Finished goods BURK - 706
- 5,248
During the year ended 3| December 2021, there was an increase in the net BE_T_—F+_A=+—HILHF
realisable value of certain raw materials and finished goods due to rise in market B BmRmELA  HETRHMEEK D
price Therefore, a reversal of write-down of approximately HK$1,928,000 has BV AT EFE LT - At - MORRE A
been recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount A5 1,928000TTE B MR - R
net of allowance of inventories of approximately HK$49,016,000 amounted to Z_—F+A=1+—H HREFEEE
approximately HK$5,248,000. A& 49016000 T REBEN BE
#5,248,0007T °
During the year ended 3| December 2022, due to the obsolescence and diminishing BE_T__F+_A=+—HIHF
marketability as a result of changes in the market condition and technology, the B BaRmARRRES  SREFEEH
management of the Group considered to write off the remaining inventories with BRERERIE  AEEEREZR
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,711,000. At 31 December 2022, there WSHER T BREI (B A B H3,711,0007T 6977
were no inventories held by the Group. B RZZE_Z_F+-A=+—H" K
SEYEREEAFE -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. PEWRRFRR H b B IR

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT

Trade receivables U BR 3R 33,219 33219
Less: Loss allowance for ECL W EHEEEERE (33.219) (32.515)
- 704

Other receivables H i fEUGRIE - 6,174
Total trade and other receivables R U B R % Lt Wi SR TR 4B R - 6,878
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e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

20.

166

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance
for ECL) presented based on the invoice date which approximate the respective

revenue recognition date at the reporting date.

20.

JE WS Bk I EL At PR KUK TR (42

RiE B - BURTHGEREES
BREER  REZAHM(ZAHERE
WesHER B EIEE ) 25 2 Rk 24T 40
_FO

2022 2021

—E__F —E-—fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT

0 to 30 days 0£30H - 270
31 to 90 days 3IHZ%0H -

Over 90 days 90R AL - 434

Trade receivables JEWER X - 704

The Group normally requests its customers to make advance payment, except
for certain customers for which the credit terms are generally up to 45 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Before accepting any new customers, the management of the Group will
base on the credit quality of the potential customers to define credit limits. Credit
limits to customers are reviewed annually. In determining the recoverability of the
trade receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade

receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.

At 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$434,000 which are
past due over 90 days at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.
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e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEWERRRHMEWRIEE)
Other receivables HitERFKIE
2022 2021
—E-C&F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Advances to suppliers (note) TR ER IR () - 1,634
Other taxes recoverable (note) A AT B R R (Pt ) - 3422
Others i = 1118
- 6,174
Note: The Group had made advances to various suppliers for the procurement of raw Mist - REE B RERERR RS THERNE

materials. The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverability of the unutilised
advances based on all relevant information available to the Group. At 3| December
2022 and 2021, the unutilised advances to suppliers amounted to approximately
HK$1,634,000. Furthermore, the other taxes recoverable mainly represented by
the value added tax ("VAT") recoverable that have accumulated to date in certain
subsidiaries of the Group which can be deducted from VAT recoverable on future
sales made.

The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverability of the advances to
suppliers and other taxes recoverable based on all relevant information available to the
Group. Due to the continuing downtum of the Group’s business operation and the
status of negotiation with the suppliers, the directors of the Company considered that
there was significant uncertainty on the ability of the Group to recover certain part of
the advances through either utilisation from future purchases or refunds. Furthermore,
following to the further suspension of production in the Group’s factory in March
2022, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the recoverability of other
taxes recoverable is remote.

Accordingly, an impairment loss of advances to suppliers and other taxes recoverables
of approximately HK$ 1,634,000 (2021: approximately HK$1,950,000) and
approximately HK$3,422,000 (202 1: Nil), respectively, was recognised in profit or loss
for year ended 3| December 2022.

HIEFARIE - ARREEREAE
B A A 2 A E R EM AR
HABNRBEZAIRERE - R
T FRZE—FF+ZRA=1—
B - RBAEMNHERFIRELSE
1,634,0007T © Ltoh + Eofth AT U B 5K
FTEANEBETHEBARCSRE
BRI U B ERT ([EER ) - ATgtR
HEHE R A B OB ©

RAREEREANEEFMA IR
BB B E AN EEERE R
Hig B Rz TR ERE - AR
SEEBEEFE T T RAEE AR
ez RSN - AARESR AR
BARTEBHAIRREANEE LW
BETHIERFBZENTFEEX
TEABAR & o B4 - BEEAEE T
RZZZZF=AE—FFE  AQ
AEERAEMATKEFH R 2 AT [E
RERKE -

At 2T -_—F+-_F=+—
HIEFERBRER A HERR
BREMARERZRERSED B A
A 6340000 (=T =Z—F : 4
71 1,950,0007T ) K 497585 3,422,0007C
(ZF=—F:%F)-

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the years ended BHE - TE-_—Fr-_FT-_—%+—-A
31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial =1t BIEFEZ YRR E it e I
TR ER EFH EEN GRS M RR N
129

statements.
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e ISR

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

21. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH 20, ERBEBTEHRASREEARE
EQUIVALENTS 1HH
2022 2021
—E-C=E T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Bank balances and cash RITEART 2 3,293 52,939
Less: Restricted bank balances B IR HRITAER (2.863) (3/455)
Cash and cash equivalents BekERFALER 430 49,484
Bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and bank deposits which RITEREBREORAEEREG RS
carried interest at prevailing market rates. RBITER - BAFERIRBITHSHE
AR
At 31 December 2022, restricted bank balances of approximately HK$2,863,000 RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—0 " XREH
(202 approximately HK$3,455,000) were frozen by the order of the courts in RITHE SR A B 28630000 (ZF = —
the PRC pursuant to the legal claims as set out in the note 32 to the consolidated F KA HE34550007T ) REBEH IR 4R
financial statements. Subsequent to the 31 December 2022 and up to the date of B ERRM DA ERFRZF A
approving these consolidated financial statements, the restricted bank balance of PUES TUNRE - RZE-_—F+=A
approximately HK$2,863,000 as at 3| December 2022 was utilised as settlement of =+t—BRREEHEZZHFEUER
above claim. FBEH - R_ZB__F+_A=1+—H
HOS2 IR R 1T A ER 4078 5 2,863,000TT -
ERERR PR -
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. BENRIREMEMCRE

The following is the ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

RBEMR - ENRFRERAHZ5]
ZERERDHTIT

168

2022 2021

—E-C=E —EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT AT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H - 3,115
31 to 90 days 3IHZE90H - 185
Over 90 days 90 E 25,105 23,677
Trade payables FERARTX 25,105 26977
Other payables oA e 5018 51,166 34,836
Trade and other payables FEAIBRAR o Ho Ath FE T 500R 76,27 61813

The trade payables are interest-free with normal credit terms up to 90 days.
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e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22. BENERRRHEMESREGE)
Other payables HAt AT RIE
NOTE 2022 2021
Py et —¥-—F —T-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR AR
Payable for staff costs FERTE TR 3,770 10,072
Payable for audit services ET RIS 510E 1,722 883
Payable for rental expenses for a REHEENHRSRX
short-term lease 954 -
Other tax payables Hip T 1,798 1,997
Payables for early termination of the leases  $EATAX |FH & S IR 16 13,078 -
Provision for severance and other BB RE MBS BRE
termination costs 1,520 -
Provision for losses on litigations AR R R 32 2,874 3,888
Refundable deposits from its customers REERPHARELS 23 18,818 10,129
Others Hity 6,632 6,867
Total other payables Hh N FIBEE 51,166 34,836
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HEZZ-__F+-A=1—HIEFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both
occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities from contracts with customers
within HKFRS |5 during the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021 are as

BREE

HE - T-_—Fr-_FT-_—%F+—A
=+—HIFE  REBBHEREE
BB ISSHAEZRFANNENEESE

follows: (TP BEORE—FREENEME
BAMEEZE)INT

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BB TIT

At | January R—A—H 8,689 18,666

Receipt of advances LS EIN P - 5931
Recognised as revenue R RN - (5,779)
Transfer to other payables EERFHMEMNTIR (8,689) (10,129)
At 31 December RTZA=1—H - 8,689

At 31 December 2021, the advances from customers are expected to be

recognised as revenue within | year.

Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations

All the performance obligations that were unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at
31 December 2021 are part of contracts that have an original expected duration
of one year or less. Given that the Group applies the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 (a) of HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these performance

obligations is not disclosed.

24. LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER 24.

The balance represents loan advanced from a shareholder, Huaneng, for working

capital purpose. The loan was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE_T-_—F+-A=+-HIFE

BORROWINGS TR
2022 2021
—B-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T AR
Non-current (note i) JeBDEA (P i)
Unsecured borrowing from a financial institution RE—EEREENERRER - 36,47
Interest payables FERFE - 12,224
- 48,695
Current (note ii) B8 (P aFii)
Unsecured borrowings from other creditors REH B AN EERER 42,704 8,856
Interest payables FERFIR 14,937 457
57,641 9313
Notes: 5t -
()  On 8 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, & B & F (X Y1) B R 2 7, () R-E—LF+-ANR - FEEH

(i

entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution to borrow approximately
RMB30,000,000 at a fixed interest rate of 8.0% per annum for one year and pledged
by account receivables of the Group. On 27 March 2020, BEEF(FI) AR A
7] entered into a supplementary agreement with the financial institution to extend
the repayment date of the borrowing including the interest payables with maturity
date on 3| March 2026 at a fixed interest of 8.0% per annum. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group's the COVID-19 pandemic has affected the Group's
operation to the extent that the production of the Group's leased factory in Shenzhen
was suspended with effect from 5 March 2022, the tenancy of factory was terminated
on 31 May 2022 which was broken the covenants that the financial institution can
call the borrowing at any time. Therefore, such borrowing was reclassified as current
liabilities at 31 December 2022.

The borrowings from other creditors were unsecured and guaranteed by the
controlling shareholder of the Company, bore interest at 10.0% per annum and

repayable on demand. The borrowings were denominated in RMB and US$.

(i)

MBARBERET(RI)ERARHE
—REBMEB L ERTE - WZE
TE G 7 28.0% 18 5 AT A R #£30,000,000
TT—F DA ERIRTIER A -
NZZE-ZEE=F=-1++H BEE
FORYD BB A RERZ S BHER] L
HrpRERAAfER(RERMF
BIENBEH IHAA-T-AF
ZA=+—8  REEFFXR0%:T
BoHET_F+-A=+—H
EFE AEEZEXCOVID-19%
BYE  UBAKEMARYINEE
IRE-_E-_—F=-ARALEE"
MZIBMELNER-_ZT-_—_FHA
=+—BFNMELE  ERT SR
FIRER MRS AR - At - B
EBHR_E-_—_F+-_fA=+—HE
HOBARBAE -

REEMERAZEBRBREERLH
ARBEBRBRER - HFB100%
ATRRRREM » ERARARER
XItitE
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BRAR
Number of
shares Amount
RDEE 8
HK$'000
BT T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRREBESAKIOTH TR
At | January 2021, 31 December 2021, N_ZE-_—F—-HA—H"
| January 2022 and 3| December 2022 —T_—%+-A=+—8"
ZECCFE-A-RUK
—E__F+-A=+—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Ordinary shares of US$0.10 each BREEO.I0ETHE B,
At | January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZZE-_—%—A—AH"
| January 2022 and 3| December 2022 T —Ft+ZA=t—H"
T CF-A-BUMR
—E-—%+=-A=+—H 10,000 8
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREBESAEIOTH TR
At | January 2021, 31 December 2021, R-ZE-_—%—A—H"
| January 2022 and 3| December 2022 T —Ft+ZA=t—H"
ZECCFE-A-RUK
—E__F+-A=+—H 2,599,993,088 259,999
27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BRESHE

The Group share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved for adoption on 29

August 2012 to attract, motivate and retain key employees who contribute to the

growth of the Group. The Scheme has a maximum of ten years in operation from

the date of adoption.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company offered to grant

options to selected eligible participants, including full-time employees and full-time

executive directors of the Company or employees or any of its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the number of the Company's issued
shares from time to time. Subject always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option scheme(s) of the
Company, must not exceed 0% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the adoption date. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or exceeded if approved by
shareholders in general meeting subject always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit.

The total number of the Company's shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted to a participant in any |2-month period immediately
preceding the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as
at date of such grant. If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their respective
associates, the total number of the Company's shares issued and which may be issued
to such participant upon exercise of all options granted in any |2-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares
then in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted shall be the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercisable period.

An option may be exercised during a period to be determined by the Company's
board of directors in their absolute discretion and in any event such period shall not
exceed 10 years after the date of grant of the option.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme during the year ended 3|
December 2022 (2021: Nil). No share option was outstanding at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

27.
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28.

29.

174

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXREBERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to REEEAEREERRAEEANZ
continue as a going concem while maximising the retumn to stakeholders through FIEERORERY  RNEBREL
the optimisation of debts and equity balance. In order to maintain or adjust the BB KRR A EERRRFRFRARR -
capital structure, the appropriate of the going concern basis is assessed after taking RERIAEERER  ZRIAEE
into consideration all relevant available information about the future of the Group, BRaFMBAGEER  BREAKENGE
including the outcomes of the Group’s plans and measures (including any liabilities FER(BREEABESAE)EE
restructuring plan) and financial support from potential investor(s). The Group may REENIBXIE CHFELERE
raise loan from shareholders and issue new shares to reduce debts. BEEH - AEEAEARFRES
ERREATHRAR A BT -
The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners of the ARBEARERERRAREE AR
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves, loan from a shareholder and/or HER(BEEBHTRAE - #FE  B’E
financial support from potential investor(s). ERR/SBEREENUBIIER) -
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As REEEEEFHEZERLERE - 1EA
part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost of capital and BEGL D AEREEREZRE
the risks associates with the capital, and takes appropriate actions through raising AZRARERZ B - U &REES
debts to adjust the Group's capital structure. EBRIE R E AR R EE 2 ERR
% o
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. £®IA
Categories of financial instruments eI AER
2022 2021
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BETIT
Financial assets at amortised cost BB BR SR EE 3,293 63,332
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEHA AR 2 2 BB IR 315,283 360319

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental deposits, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, borrowings and loan from a shareholder. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB. The
majority of the business transactions were denominated in respective local
currencies and there were only insignificant balances of financial assets and liabilities
were denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December 2022 and 2021. Hence,

the Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between HK$ and US$ to be insignificant for transactions denominated in
US$. The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and conversion
of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

The Group has not used any financial instruments to hedge against currency risk.
However, management constantly reviews the economic situation and its foreign
currency risk profile and monitors its foreign exchange exposure, and will implement
appropriate hedging measures in future on significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on bank balances. Fluctuations of prevailing rate quoted by the People’s

Bank of China are the major sources of the Group's cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group will continue to monitor the exposure on cash flow interest rate risk and
will consider hedging the interest rate should the need arise. In the management's
opinion, the Group does not have material interest rate risk exposure and hence no

sensitivity analysis is presented.
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29.

176

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group is arising from the amount of each class of financial assets as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its

financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group uses an interal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed at least twice a year. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the management of the Group considers that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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BE_T-_—F+-A=+-HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @RWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Credit risk (continued) EEmRE(E)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) ELEEFAAZ EWER(E)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following ARB 2 AEME Bk RV a S
categories: TR
Internal
credit rating  Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
REREEFR HP JE R HittemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — not credit-  12m ECL
does not have any past-due amount impaired
1 ez HFHEREVEREYEETMANNE 2HENMEERRE-YE +_EARPEEESR
ELEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — not credit-  12m ECL
usually settle after due date impaired
BR5E BEEALENBHARER  BERAENIY 2HEHNEESRE-YE +_EARPEEESR
A58 ELEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit-  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

risk since initial recognition through information  impaired

developed internally or external resources

Al &E BBARFE BEINFERGH 8 2HENEEFE-YE HENEEFE-YEEARFE
R\ B ) S HERIARA IR N ELEERE BIE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
impaired impaired
EiiE BAEBERAEEELERRE SHENEEFE-EEX 2HRNEERE-ELXEERE
EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor isin  Amount is written off Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery

sH AEBRBEBABABREMBR - BN SHEMH SRR
ER B3 0] O R AT
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @RWMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)

Credit risk (continued) EEmEE(E)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) EEBEFPEHZ EREF(E)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, TRAMASEEREE(RETES

which are subject to ECL assessment: FEERR) 2 EEREAE -
External Internal [2m or Gross Total gross

2022 NOTE credit rating credit rating Lifetime ECL amount amount

TZERAHZHRH
it St e SMBEETR AREETR FEEE BE BEAT

HK$'000 HK$'000
EET T BT

Financial assets at
amortised cost

BRERAIIRcEHMERE

Bank balances and cash 21 N/A (Note I) [2m ECL 3,293 3,293

RiTER LR i (BaE ) +ZEARBEEEE

Other receivables N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL — credit- 1,304 1,304
impaired

Hit YRR TER (BitaE2) EHEMEEER
-ELRERE

Trade receivables 20 N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — credit- 33,219 33,219
impaired

FEUYRTR RER (BH&E3) 2HRNEEES
-ELRERE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @WMIAE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)

Credit risk (continued) EEmRE(E)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) EEBEFPEHZ EREF(E)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group'’s financial assets, TRFMASEERHEE (FAETEREY

which are subject to ECL assessment: (continued) EEERNG) 2 EERRAE : (&)
External Internal [2m or Gross Total gross

2021 NOTE  credit rating credit rating Lifetime ECL amount amount

TEASEHER
% e SNEBIEERR ARMEEFR FEER fafE fefEst
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BB TIT

Financial assets at

amortised cost

BBHERA Rz EREE
Rental deposits N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL 3415 3415
HeRe il (Ff5E2) +_EAEREEEHE
Finance lease receivables |7 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL — credit- 13,779 13,779
impaired
RMERERNTIA TER (Hf7x2) FHRHEEER
—ELEERE
Bank balances and cash 21 N/A (Note ) [2m ECL 52,939 52,939
RITERIAS NE A GEA +_EARHREEEHE
Other receivables 20 N/A (Note 2) [2m ECL [118 [,118
Hib AR TEH (FfE2) +_EARHREEEHE
Trade receivables 20 N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — not credit- [1,903 [1,903
impaired (provision
matrix)
FEUHR K NER (FfH&E3) 2HRBEEER
—YEELEERE
(BfErR)
N/A (Note 3) Lifetime ECL — credit- 21,316 21,316
impaired
NER (HE3) 2HRBEEERR
—ELEERE
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

Notes:

For bank balances and cash, the management of the Group considered the credit risk
has not increased significantly since the initial recognition. According to the historical

observed default rates of bank balances and cash, the average loss rate is immaterial.

2. For finance lease receivables, other receivables and rental deposits, the management of
the Group individually assessed whether the credit risk increased significantly since the
initial recognition. Except for credit-impaired debtors, the management of the Group

considered the credit risk has not increased significantly since the initial recognition.

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for credit-impaired debtors, the
Group determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by

interal credit rating.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies internal credit
rating for its customers. The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables which are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix at 31 December 2021 within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired). At 31 December 2022, the credit-impaired debtors with
gross carrying amounts of approximately HK$33,219,000 (2021: approximately
HK$21,316,000) were assessed individually.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

SMIAE)
PREREEEEREE(E)

EEmR(E)
ELHEFENZ EWEF (&)

ERASBEEERRER, —H5 K
SRUERFETABEETR - TK
RIUEEBEERBAE R EWETER
BEZER  BHEBBBREN-_Z——
F+-_RA=+— A2 BBEHEES
B(IEELEERE) REREER
HEAETHME - RZEZ=ZF+=A
=+—H  BEREREELBE33219000
TT(ZTZ—4F : £978%213160007T)
ZEEEERAEZ RUKRR AR #T
T o

2021 —BE-—F

Gross Impairment
Average carrying loss
Intemal credit rating loss rate amount allowance
NEREERT AR THEER REEE  REEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Low risk 1R g 262 -
Watch list BRBE 202% 25 5
Doubtful Al &t 96.4% 11,616 11,195
11903 11,200

& According to the historical observed default rates of the expected life of the low risk & BRERREBABRFHZBAR

debtors, the average loss rate is immaterial.

BRENE  YHEREXITERK -
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29.

182

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 3| December 2022, the Group had not provided loss
allowance (2021: a charge of approximately HK$137,000 loss allowance) for trade
receivables which are not credit-impaired, based on the provision matrix and a
charge of approximately HK$704,000 loss allowance (2021: no further charge of
loss allowance) were made on credit-impaired debtors for the years ended 3|
December 2022, which have either been placed under liquidation or in financial
difficutties.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @RWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BEEREEBERBER(E)
Credit risk (continued) EEmRE(E)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers (continued) ELEEFAAZ EWER(E)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised TRETRESEH A B R RKERT
for trade receivables under the simplified approach. R EHEREEBEEE -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
MRS 2
FEER BHEE
(LEEE BR(EE
FERE) EERE) B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At | January 2021 RZZE-_—F—H—H 11,063 21315 32,378
Charged to profit or loss BiEHMR 137 = 137
At 31 December 202 and R-E_—F+_A=+—H
| January 2022 r=F-—%—A—H 11,200 21,315 32515
Charged to profit or loss B8k - 704 704
Transferred to credit-impaired ERZEAFERE (11,200) 11,200 -
3| December 2022 —E-=f+ZH=+—H - 33,219 33,219
At 3| December 2022, the Group had no concentration of credit risk within its R-E-_—f+-A=t+—AH" Z'KE.
total trade receivables at 31 December 2022. At 3| December 2021, the Group BE_Z__F+_A=1+—HN#
had a concentration of credit risk as approximately 32.6% and 76.7% of the total WS B E P E SRR E’\\_g:*
trade receivables was due from the Group's largest trade debtor and the Group's F+t-A=1+—H0 rREAEEET
five largest trade debtors, respectively. FERR - HEREREERRT - 4

RNWREREEZRKEZEBA » &
K76 T%REREBAREHEBA -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Finance lease receivables

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made provisions for credit

impairment of financial lease receivables of approximately HK$8,623,000, mainly due

to the recognition of the difference between the carrying amount and the estimated

recoverable amount of the credit-impaired financial lease receivables as a credit

impairment loss after estimating its recoverable amount. Movement of allowances

on finance lease receivables are as follows:

SMIAE)
PREREEEEREE(E)

EEmR(E)
BEHEREWNF R

REBE-Z-—F+-A=1+—HBL#HF
B AEERHENERKFEZEE
S EL{E ) H8 8 40 7B 168,623,000 + i T
TEHRBEERERERERIKE
REEEERETAIRESE Z2ER
AEMETKESHEE 2 EERERS

B AERAHERKTARB
o
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
At | January R—H—H 8,623 =
Increase in loss allowance BRI M
— Charged to profit or loss —BEEMR - 8,623
Transferred upon early termination of the leases AR R SRR R
(note 16) (PEE16) (8,623) -
At 31 December RTZA=1—H - 8,623
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE_T-_—F+-A=+-HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @RWMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) BERBEEEEREEE)
Liquidity risk REBELEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of REELRGEcRB A SBERA
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management of the Group to AEBPERNGEEHZESRER
finance the Group's operations and mitigates the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. IHEIERKYE » JIEHARER KL LK
The management of the Group monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures FFEESRRERBERERT Y
compliance with loan covenants. 2. KEBEEEEREE Y ERBR
REERER T RRL -
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial TREFFIZBHTHBERIES  AEE
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, SRBEZHTALNRHA - 3LIETE
the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial SRBEMNE @ ZELBRERAEE
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. wEXEE7RERANHE SRERE
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on agreed ZARBRMETFERE o HMIETAES
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. BEEZIHAR AR TERA - &%
ROERERASHALHE -
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEEe RFIRE R E
Weighted
average  Ondemand  Over | year  Over 2 years Total Total carrying
effective or within but within but within  undiscounted amount at
interest rate | year 2 years 5 years cash flows year end
mETH  EERS  -EHE BENL  AERRS £X
BRAE -fr EWERN BEFR REAE  ARAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% ATt 8Tt A%Tn E%Tr  B¥Tn
At 3| December 2022 R-8-Z
tZA=+-H
Non-derivate financial liabilities FTEEREE
Trade and other payables R R EM TR - 72,953 - - 72,953 72,953
Bormowings B 84 57,641 - - 57,641 57,641
Loan from a shareholder BREREH - 184,689 - - 184,689 184,689
315,283 - - 315,283 315,283
At 31 December 2021 R-B_-F
+=ZA=1-H
Non-derivate financial liabilities FTESRHER
Trade and other payables FERTRR R B T 50E - 55928 - - 55928 55928
Bormowings B3 80 9313 - 59,850 69,163 58008
Lease liabilties HERR 90 29547 15,754 - 45,301 4,701
Loan from a shareholder BRER - 203682 - - 203682 203682
298470 15,754 59,850 374074 360,319
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29.

30.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. @RWMIAE)
Fair value AHE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are REERAGHE eREERSHAE
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on ZAFETDBENEIRBEERESTA
discounted cash flow analysis. EMHAREBRIERT -
The management of the Group considers that the carrying amount of financial AEEERERRNGEMBREF I
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial BHEpATHR eREERERARZ
statements approximates to their fair values. REEEEATERS
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 30. BMEEBAELREHK
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing TREJIAEEERETHMELEE
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing ZEH(PERE LIRS EH)FE -
activities are that for which cash flow was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the 5 MEBBEENEBERRIEENG
Group's consolidated statement of cash flow as cash flow from financing activities. RengRkPBERBERDAER S
mzE’\Jfﬁﬁmzﬁﬂixfﬁimz g
Loan from Lease
a shareholder ~ Borrowings liabilities Total
BRREM EEA HEAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BT T AT T AT
At | January 2021 R-ZZEZ—F—H—H 121,492 44851 56,60 222944
Financing cash flow MERERE 82,190 9313 (17,748) 73,755
Exchange differences BE K = - 980 - 980
Finance costs AR = 2,865 3,848 6,713
At 31 December 2021 and R-F-_—fF+-A=t—H
| January 2022 k=—F-—F—H—H 203,682 58,009 42,701 304,392
Financing cash flow BERERE (23,697) - - (23,697)
Exchange differences bE =5 - (4,050) - (4,050)
Finance costs AR - 3,682 1,471 5,153
Early termination of the leases AR RS - - (27,621) (27,621)
Expenses paid on behalf REfIRX 4,704 - - 4,704
Transfer to other payables EEEH AN - - (16,551) (16,551)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-—F+=-A=+—H 184,689 57,641 - 242,330
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32.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND 31.

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended 31 December 2022 and

2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting periods.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

’RE

HE - T-_—Fr-_FT-_—%F+—A
=t BItFE @ BERNREZRM
B - REREHRET ERSRMNR

=
/N

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS 32. HAAME HFA
2022 2021
—E-fF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At beginning of the reporting period WS 3,888 2314
Additions NE - 2874
Amount reversed e (1,014) (1,300)
At end of the reporting period WEEAR 2,874 3,888

(@  In December 2020, there was a litigation initiated by a supplier of the Group
in Hong Kong claiming the allegedly due and unpaid balance of purchase
orders against a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong in view of unilateral
cancellation of purchase orders by the subsidiary of the Group for a sum of
approximately US$334,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,605,000).
The management of the Group, having obtained the legal advice from an
independent legal counsel, estimated that the Group will likely be liable to
pay for the total and, therefore, the Group had recognised the provision for
losses on litigations of approximately HK$2,314,000 in profit or loss for the
year ended 3| December 2020.

@ RZZEZZTF+A KX5HE
REBN —EHERENAE
BHBRARETEIRESELY
A334000E T (HHE RN B
2,605,0007T ) B ERIE 7] & M fe B A
D REBEEONREEREEN
—fEKIE A RIRER] B 2 BIHR
NESRRLAR - AREERE
RERBLZEBREEZER
% B AEEKA R ERR
T R ASEEREE=
ETF+ZA=+—HLEFE
ZBRENERTIRFLBELE
#2,314,0007T °
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32.

188

Ft-A=+-RALFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

On 12 April 2022, the Group has filed a Consent Summons for settlement
to the District Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
According to the Consent Summons, the settlement sum was reduced to
approximately US$130,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,014,000). On
I'l May 2022, the Consent Summons was approved. As a result, a reversal of
provision for losses on litigations of approximately HK$ 1,300,000 had been
recognised in “Provision for losses on litigations, net” in “Other losses, net” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 3| December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has fully settled the
unpaid balance of purchase orders.

In 2020, the Group received a notice from the PRC District Court stating that
a supplier of the Group in the PRC has initiated legal action against certain
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC by claiming the allegedly due and unpaid
balance of subcontracting fees from the Group. In respect of the aforesaid
due and unpaid balance of subcontracting fees, approximately HK$5,454,000
had been recognised in “Trade payables” at 3| December 2022 and 2021.

According to final judgements dated 8 August 2022 issued by the PRC
District Court, the Group was liable to make payment of approximately
RMB4,914,000 and approximately RMBI | 1,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,543,000 and approximately HK$125,000) as settlement of
subcontracting fees and material costs, respectively.

Subsequent to the 31 December 2022 and up to the date of approving
these consolidated financial statements, the restricted bank balance of
approximately HK$2,863,000 was utilised as settlement of above claim.
The remaining subcontracting fees were still outstanding up to the date of
approving these consolidated financial statements.
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/LITIGATIONS (continued)

©

During the year ended 3| December 2021, the Group received several
notices from the PRC District Court stating that a group of ten individuals
former employees and three individuals former employees of the Group
in the PRC has initiated legal action against subsidiaries of the Group in the
PRC by claiming compensation of the dismissal of labour contract in view
of breach of terms in employment agreement by the Group. Pursuant to
the judgements made by the court of the PRC, the Group was ordered to
make payment amounting to approximately HK$2,874,000 which had been
recognised in “Provision for losses on litigations, net” in “Other losses, net” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group has filed for appeals for
such judgements to the PRC District Court.

According to the final judgement date 7 December 2021, the PRC District
Court dismissed the appeals and affirmed the original judgement. The Group
has been trying to reach a settlement agreement with them subsequent
to the final judgement issued by the PRC District Court but yet to reach a
settlement agreement subsequent to the 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of approving the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the disclosure of above and elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group was not involved in any

other material litigation or arbitration. As far as the management of the Group was

aware, the Group had no other matenial litigation or claim which was pending or

threatened against the Group. At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group was the

defendant of certain non-material litigations, and also a party to certain litigations

arising from the ordinary course of business of the Group. The likely outcome of

these contingent liabilities, litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be ascertained

with reasonable certainty at present, but the management of the Group believes

that any possible legal liability which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases will

not have any material impact on the financial position or results of the Group.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

RREE HARE)

O REBEZZ-_—F+-A=1+-—
RLEEE  ASEEEREMS
ERAETBRA - BHEAEEF
Brt+aERRTEEE R =4
ARl R B MK NEEHARE
BRFBHIKIB A RIREHFA -
ERRAEEERERGZETH
R MRS B A REFEE -
RERBEUERA AR - REBK
BELXHE® 28740007 © #%
REERBE_T-_—F+=H
S+ —HLEFEMNREABRRE
MmEARERAIEMBERE  F
P FLABERESEI®
R AEBERZZAARPE
5 AR R 5 o

BEAPRA-_ZE-_—F+_A+
A2 &EFR - BT AR
Bl EF R @ERRA  ERE S
ERELEMREZAIRE - AEE
—HEARBEERMERE
MR-_E-_—F+-A=+—H
BREEENGRA P B®REA
MO AREKR TR ek o

B Ll R AR & B IS R P O B R
I RZBZZFRZFZ—F+A
=+—B ' AEERESEMEMER
FAHME - BREEEREEMA - A
SEVEEMRAIRBASENEX
FRHIRR RZE_—FR-FT=—
F+-_A=+—H A£EAETHE
RFARNESE - TRASERATES
PEPESETHA - BRINEERE
BEZENBEE  FLRSEMERR
FHATGEER - BAEEEREERA
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33.

190

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the transactions and the balances with related parties disclosed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group also entered into

the following significant transactions with related parties during the years ended 31

33.

BEIRS

BRIt AR A B 75 SRR E th 25 0 A it £ R Bt
TR G NERIN AEEREBE-T
——FR_E_—F+-_A=+—HI

December 2022 and 2021 FEDEEHAETATERRS
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT

Remuneration for key management personnel of ZAEETEEE A S :
the Group:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e 2 REMER 510 3110
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRIEFIETEI IR 40 290
550 3,400

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and other members of key

management is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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34.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BRI AR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34.

At 3| December 2022 and 2021, the Company's principal subsidiaries are all

indirectly wholly-owned by the Company. Details of the Company's principal

subsidiaries at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Nominal value

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
BE T —F+-A=t+-HIHFE

TEMBEATF

i\ —EZ—%+=H
=+—H ' ARAFEMRBARHI AR
RAAEEZERE - ARAZENMBR
ARZEZZFRZF_—F+H
=+ —HZHBEWT -

Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Principal activities
AR, ERTER
B B BB PR 3 %6 ROEE SMEs TEXH
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of electronic products
ERMER LA BB BT REEFEM
BEEF(RINEBRAF (Note) The PRC HK$35,000,000 Manufacture of electronic products and
plastic parts and provision of surface mount
technology assembly services
BREFORINBRRAF(NE)  +E 78350000007t REE FERRBBHI RREEREEZS
By
Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of electronic
Limited products
B IRIKAR AR B BT HERDHEFEMR

Note: This is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective place of

incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the

directors, principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the end of the

reporting period.

PiaE : NP BRI 2 M BE R -

LA B ARG EREEEMK
/PR E

FRREEERAUAEERERE
EREERFEZARTINBLR - AL
AEERAFHMAELHEBRARCE
FHBRITE

REEHR - B BLQ RIS EEITEM
H AR 2 ERRES o
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35.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 35. ARNTNHBER
Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: RBERR - AR HERELE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B AR fRER _ _
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H A eI - 12
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE S ¥ I
I 23
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H e 308 1,924 3291
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B R RITIA 15,242 11973
17,166 15,264
Net liabilities 8EFE (17,155) (15,241)
Capital and reserves BRAK
Share capital [N 259,999 259,999
Reserves (Note (a)) () (277,154) (275,240)
Net deficit B AT (17,155) (15,241)
The statement of financial position was approved and authorised for issue by the BBRRARER_Z_MNFENANLBE
Board of Directors on 9 August 2024 and signed on its behalf by: EEQERRERT YA TIAL
RERE
Cheung Yuk Ki REEH
Director EF
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For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 35. AAFRNMBER(E)
Note: PisE
(@)  Reserves of the Company @ ARARREE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BRAEE 2 ER ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT
At | January 2021 RZE-_—F—H—H 165,043 (437312) (272,269)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for AEFEBEREAERAHE
the year - (2971) (2971)
At 31 December 2021 and R-F-_—F+-A=1—H
I January 2022 —Z-—%—F—f 165,043 (440,283) (275,240)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for AFEEEREEEBEH
the year - (1,914) (1914)
At 3| December 2022 N-—B-_—F+=-A=+—H 165,043 (442,197) (277,154)
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HE-T_—

36.

194

Ft-A=+-RALFE

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

Resumption of operation

In December 2023, the Group has actively reestablished contacts and
negotiations with potential customers and suppliers to restart the Group’s
business. Following the completion of a sales order of approximately
HK$ 1,221,000 prior to 31 December 2023, the Group is able to re-gain
confidence from the market and therefore, the Group's operations are
gradually resumed in the first quarter of 2024 and have resumed sales of

electronic products under the trademark of “Oregon Scientific”.

In order to enhance market awareness of the “Oregon Scientific” brand,
promote and to advertise and showcase its products, the Group established
its own online retail platform (http://oregonscientific.store) and set up new
online stores on Noon (an online platform headquartered in Dubai) and
Mercado Libre (the largest online platform in Latin America) respectively. The
aforementioned online stores have started operating progressively in the first
half of 2024. Additionally, the Group is continuously expanding its product
portfolio to meet new customer demands and enhance the Group’s market

competitiveness.

The Company had secured confirmed orders exceeding HK$70 million,
which are expected to be fulfilled and delivered in the third quarter of 2024.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
2 July 2024.
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36. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

Transfer of the loan of the Group

In January 2024, a shareholder loan transfer agreement was entered into by
Huaneng and its controlling shareholder, the Company, certain subsidiaries
of the Group and a third party (“Party A”), pursuant to which Party A has
agreed to acquire from Huaneng and its controlling shareholder for the entire

amount of the Huaneng's loan to the Group.

In February 2024, a loan transfer agreement was entered into by Party A, the
Company and a third party (“Party B”), pursuant to which Party B has agreed
to acquire from Party A for the amount of HK$15,000,000 of a portion of
Party A's loan to the Group.

In April 2024, a loan transfer agreement was entered into by Party A, the
Company and a third party (“Party C"), pursuant to which Party C has agreed
to acquire from Party A for the amount of HK$10,000,000 of a portion of
Party A's loan to the Group.

In April 2024, a loan transfer agreement was entered into by Party A, the
Company and a third party (“Party D"), pursuant to which Party D has agreed
to acquire from Party A for the amount of HK$10,000,000 of a portion of
Party A's loan to the Group.

In April 2024, a loan transfer agreement was entered into by Party A, the
Company and a third party (“Party E"), pursuant to which Party E has agreed
to acquire from Party A for the amount of HK$5,000,000 of a portion of
Party A's loan to the Group.

e ISR R

For the year ended 3| December 2022
HEZZ-__F+_A=+—BItFE
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Group Financial Summary

SEMHEHME

For the year ended 3| December 2022

HE-ZT-—F+-A=t-HIEE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
St 2 it S “ZT-TF “Z-NF —Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETR BB BT BT BT
RESULTS ES
Revenue Wiz 2218 17,144 55,365 270426 433,203
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (21,750) (84,234) (95,867) (83,124) (203,336)
Taxation BiE - = = (20) (12293)
Loss for the year TEEER (21,750) (84.234) (95.867) (83,144) (215629)
Attributable to: PAR AT LS
Owners of the Company KRREBA (21,750) (84234) (95.867) (83,144) (215,629)
Non—controlling interests MR - = = =
(21,750) (84.234) (95.867) (83,144) (215629)
Loss per share SRER
—Basic and diluted (HK cents) — —EAREF(EN) (0.84) (3.24) (3.68) (3.20) (8.29)
At 3| December
Rt=B=t+-AH
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“BCCF “EF —ZT-FF —ENF —ZN\F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 3,293 81,266 91,770 101833 215,180
Total liabilities mak (330,856) (386,844) (313,102) (226,925) (258,175)
(327,563) (305,578) (221332) (125092) (42,995)
Equity attributable to owners AR FIHEA AL
of the Company e (327,656) (305,671) (221,425) (125,185) (43,088)
Non-controlling interests R ER 93 93 93 93 93
(327,563) (305,578) (221332) (125092) (42,995)
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